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. Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Honorable Mayor
- and Members of the City Council
i Clty of Leander Texas ’

) Report on the Fmancral Statements

- We have aud1ted the accompanymg ﬁnancral statements of the governmental act1v1t1es, the busmess t_ype act1v1t1es
major “find, and the aggregate remaining fund information-of the City of Leander, Texas.(the C1ty) s’ of .and for the' year:
ended September 30, 2013, and the related notes to the ﬁnanc1al statements wh1ch collectrvely comprlse the C1ty 5 bas1c .

ﬁnanclal statements as listed in the table of contents. - 4 ST LeE o

o Management $ Responstbtltty for the Fmanctal Statements

: Management is respons1ble for the preparatlon and fair presentat1on ‘of these ﬁnanclal statements in accordance w1th
accountmg prmclples generally accepted in the United States.of :America; this includes the design, nnplementauon and

_maintenance of 1ntema1 control relevant to the prepardtion and falr presentat1on of ﬁnanclal statements that are free frOm, X

' _ mater1al m1sstatement whether due to fraud Or érror.

Audttor s Responscbtltty

‘ -Our respon51b111ty is to express opinions on these ﬂnanc1al statements based on our aud1t We conducted our: aud1t in
.accordance with -auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. and the standards appllcable to o
ﬁnanclal audits contalned in Governmert Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those .
standards require that we plan and perform the aud1t to obtam reasonable assurance. about Whether the ﬂnanc1a1 statements .
S are free from materlal misstatement. : o - . - -

“ An aud1t 1nvolves performmg procedures to obtam audrt evrdence about the amounts and d1sc10sures in the ﬁnanmal' -
- statements.- The ‘procedures selected depend on' the audifor’s ‘judgment, including the :assessment of the rlsks of ‘material

misstatemerit of the financial statements, whether- due’ to “fraud or error; In making those risk assessments, the auditor _ ; -

considérs. internal control. relevant to the ent1ty s preparation.and fair presentation of the- financial statements in order to

' _des1gn audit procedures that are. appropr1ate in the cifcumstances, but'not for the purpose’of expressing ar: op1n10n onthe "«

effect1veness of the entity’s internal control. Accordmgly, we express no such opinion. An’ aud1t also includes evaluat1ng the’ . g
_ appropnateness of:accounting policies used and the reasonableness of sighificant accountmg est1mates made by management -
as well as evaluatmg the overall presentation of the ﬁnanc1a1 statements. - . C o

We beheve that the aud1t ev1dence we have obtamed 1s sufﬁc1ent and approprlate to provrde a bas1s for our aud1t opnuons
'»0p1ntons

In our’ opmlon the ﬁnanc1al statements referred to- above present fa1r1y, in all matenal respects the respectrve ﬁnan(

‘position’ of the' governmental activities, the business- type ‘activities, each major fund, and the aggregate. rémaining fund SO

information of the City of Leander, Texas, as of September 30, 2013, and the respect1ve changes in financial position, and, -

'where apphcable, cash flows thereof, and the respective budgetary comparisonis for the general fund and traffic 1mpact S

analys1s fund for the year. then ‘ended in accordance w1th -accounting principles’ generally accepted in the Umted States of

- Amer1ca




Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and
analysis on pages 3—10 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City’s
basic financial statements. The combining nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits
of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility
of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the combining nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 11, 2014, on our
consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Diie inad v (3, PC.

Certified Public Accountants

Abilene, Texas
February 11, 2014




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As Management of the City of Leander, we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this narrative overview and
analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, It should be read in conjunction
with the accompanying basic financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013,
by $124,155,134 (net position). Of this amount, $19,588,138 (unrestricted net position) may be used to
meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

e The City’s total net position increased by $22,505,337 for the year ended September 30, 2013. Most of
this increase is due to increased sales tax revenue, building and development-related fees, grants,
impact fees, and capital contributions from developers.

e As of September 30, 2013, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$11,378,468, a decrease of $636,724 in comparison with the prior fiscal year due to expenditures on
capital projects.

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $7,703,556 or
47.84% of total general fund expenditures.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s proprietary funds reported combined ending net
position of $70,850,835, an increase of $6,298,189 in comparison with the prior year. Most of the
increase is attributable to increased infrastructure contributed by developers and capital projects.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis serves as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements. The City’s basic financial
statements are comprised of three components: government-wide financial statements, fund financial statements, and notes to
the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a
manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two
reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial
position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the fiscal year. All of the
current year’s revenues and expenses are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Leander that are principally supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant
portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Leander
include general government, public safety, public works and streets, and parks and recreation. The business-type activities of the
City of Leander include water and wastewater services and the City’s public golf course.

The government wide financial statements can be found on pages 11 — 12 of this report.




Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds — not the City as a whole. Some
funds are required to be established by state law and bond covenants. However, the City establishes many other funds to help it
control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes,
grants, and other money. The City’s two kinds of funds — governmental and proprietary — use different accounting approaches.

e  Governmental funds — Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-ferm
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus on governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Leander has four major governmental funds — general fund, debt service fund, capital projects
fund, and traffic impact analysis fund. Information is presented separately in the governmental funds
balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances for each of these major funds. The City also has several nonmajor special revenue funds.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund and traffic impact analysis fund.
Budgetary comparison statements have been provided for the general fund and traffic impact analysis
fund on pages 17 and 18, respectively, to demonstrate compliance with the appropriated budgets.

e Proprietary funds — The City maintains two enterprise funds, which are proprietary fund types.
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The City of Leander uses enterprise funds to account for its
water and wastewater services and the City’s public golf course.

The City’s fund financial statements can be found on pages 13 — 22 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide
and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found immediately following the basic financial
statements on pages 23 — 42 of this report. '




GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case of the
City of Leander, assets exceeded liabilities by $124,155,134 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

The largest portion of the City’s net position (80.4%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, equipment,
infrastructure, and systcm improvements) lcss any rclated debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City
uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed
to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these

liabilities.

CITY OF LEANDER’S NET POSITION

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Current and other assets  $ 15,657,497 $ 15,852,342  §$ 17,653,277 $ 20,866,888 $§ 33,310,774 $ 36,719,230
Capital assets 92,395,442 77,084,704 122,544,206 116,001,509 214,939,648 193,086,213
Total assets 108,052,939 92,937,046 140,197,483 136,868,397 248,250,422 229,805,443
Long-term liabilities 51,410,375 53,111,224 66,750,768 69,042,243 118,161,143 122,153,467
Other liabilities 3,338,265 2,728,671 2,595,880 3,273,508 5,934,145 6,002,179
Total liabilities 54,748,640 55,839,895 69,346,648 72,315,751 124,095,288 128,155,646
Net position:
Net investment in
capital assets 43,032,586 28,836,149 56,731,591 49,945,695 99,764,177 78,781,844
Restricted 937,727 1,053,437 3,865,092 1,086,103 4,802,819 2,139,540
Unrestricted 9,333,986 7,207,565 10,254,152 13,520,848 19,588,138 20,728,413
Total net position § 53,304,299 _§ 37,097,151 _$ 70,850,835 $ 64,552,646 $ 124,155,134 § 101,649,797

An additional portion of the City of Leander’s net position (3.87%) represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position, $19,588,138, may be used to meet
the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Leander is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net
positions for the government as a whole.

The City’s net position increased by $22,505,337 during the current fiscal year. Almost all of this increase is due to increased
sales tax revenue, building and development-related fees, grants, impact fees, and capital contributions from developers.




CITY OF LEANDER’S CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Program revenues

Charges for services $ 6724969 $ 4,635,036 $ 17,360,567 § 16,251,608 $ 24,085,536 $ 20,886,644

Grants and contributions 264,410 138,693 - - 264,410 138,693

Capital contributions 12,711,318 7,036,733 9,276,384 7,907,423 21,987,702 14,944,156
General revenues

Property taxes 12,552,676 12,027,326 - - 12,552,676 12,027,326

Other taxes 3,835,968 3,394,369 - - 3,835,968 3,394,369

Interest income 14,402 70,977 13,473 109,854 27,875 180,831

Other income 46,435 47,961 28 21,000 46,463 68,961
Total revenues 36,150,178 27,351,095 26,650,452 24,289,885 62,800,630 51,640,980 .
Expenses

General government 4,828,779 4,897,344 - - 4,828,779 4,897,344

Public safety 8,916,377 8,395,681 - - 8,916,377 8,395,681

Public works 3,217,455 2,811,994 - - 3,217,455 2,811,994

Parks and recreation 1,878,514 1,891,799 - - 1,878,514 1,891,799

Interest on long-term debt 1,976,905 2,010,249 - - 1,976,905 2,010,249

Utility services - - 18,091,925 11,800,494 18,091,925 11,800,494

Golf course - - 1,385,338 1,345,920 1,385,338 1,345,920
Total expenses 20,818,030 20,007,067 19,477,263 13,146,414 40,295,293 33,153,481
Increase in net position

before transfers 15,332,148 7,344,028 7,173,189 11,143,471 22,505,337 18,487,499
Transfers 875,000 (145,000) (875,000) 145,000 - -
Change in net position 16,207,148 7,199,028 6,298,189 11,288,471 22,505,337 18,487,499
Net position - beginning,

as restated 37,097,151 29,898,123 64,552,646 53,264,175 101,649,797 83,162,298 .
Net position - ending § 53,304,299 § 37,097,151 § 70,850,835 $ 64,552,646 § 124,155,134 § 101,649,797

Governmental Activities

Governmental activities increased the City of Leander’s net position by $16,207,148. Key elements of this increase are as

follows:

o  Capital contributions provided 35.16% of the City’s governmental revenues. These include streets and
drainage infrastructure contributed by developers.

e Tax revenues (property, sales, and franchise fees) provided 45.33% of the City’s governmental revenues.
Tax revenues increased by $966,949, or 6.27%, over 2012,

e Increases to govemmerital activities net position were partially offset by expenditures on two major street
and drainage projects, County Glen subdivision and County Road 179, that reduced available fund
balances in the capital projects fund and the traffic impact analysis fund, respectively.










The debt service fund experienced an increase in fund balance of $152,404 during 2013, representing an increase in fund
balance of 33.69% from 2012, due to greater than anticipated property tax collections. The capital projects fund experienced
a decrease in fund balance of $3,162,878 during 2013 due to ongoing construction activities. The traffic impact analysis fund
experienced a decrease in fund balance of $1,381,443 during 2013 due to construction of a significant roadway project.

Proprietary Funds

The City of Leander’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the utility fund at the end of the year amounted to $10,316,522. Untestricted net position of the
golf course fund at the end of the year amounted to a deficit of $62,370. The utility fund experienced an increase in net assets
of $6,321,377 during 2013, representing an increase in net position of 10.27% from 2012, due to capital contributions from
developers and impact fees. The golf course fund experienced a decrease in net position of $23,188 during 2013, representing
a decrease in net position of 0.77% from 2012, due to depreciation expense.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Actual revenues were greater than budgeted revenues by $2,562,538. This is mostly attributable to the increase in sales tax
revenue as well as development-related fees exceeding projections. Actual expenditures were below final budgeted expenditures
by $445,948. This is mainly attributable to salary savings caused by several vacant positions as well as certain expenditures that
were planned for but that did not occur in the current fiscal year.

Traffic Impact Analysis Fund Budgetary Highlights

Actual revenues were less than budgeted revenues by $686,295. This is mostly attributable to the timing of contractual payments
from Williamson County and Leander ISD for their contributions to the County Road 179 project. The balance of approximately
$900,000 is anticipated in fiscal year 2014. Actual expenditures were below final budgeted expenditures by $544,053 due to the
County Road 179 project that was still under construction at year end,

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

The City of Leander’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of September 30, 2013
amounts to $306,119,648 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and
improvements, infrastructure and system improvements (including streets and drainage infrastructure), and machinery and
equipment.

CITY OF LEANDER’S CAPITAL ASSETS

Goverhmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Land $ 1,734,940 § 1,734,940 § 2,331,833 § 2,331,833 § 4,066,773 $ 4,066,773
Construction in progress 23,861,622 12,465,376 6,139,780 8,052,344 30,001,402 20,517,720
Buildings and improvements 18,871,651 18,871,651 1,350,034 1,350,034 20,221,685 20,221,685
Machinery and equipinent 8,148,036 7,977,727 1,654,270 1,622,887 9,802,306 9,600,614
Infrastructure and system 59,683,724 53,111,769 130,570,072 119,520,177 190,253,796 172,631,946
Less: accumulated depreciation (19,904,531) (17,076,759) (19,501,783) (16,875,766) (39,406,314) (33,952,525)
Total capital assets $__ 92395442 $_ 77,084,704 $ 122,544,206 $ 116,001,509 $ 214,939,648 $ 193,086,213

Additional information regarding the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 on pages 30 — 31 of this report.




Long-term Debt

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Leander has total general obligation debt outstanding of $50,050,000 and a note
payable of $565,000, which the City expects to retire through the debt service fund. The City has long-term bonded debt
outstanding of $54,857,000 and a note payable of $11,031,313 at September 30, 2013 in the utility fund. Additional information
on the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 7 on pages 32 — 36 of this report.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

e The City adopted a tax rate of $0.66792 ($0.43142 for maintenance and operations and $0.2365 for
interest and sinking) for fiscal year 2013.

e The number of water accounts increased by 553, or 5.7%, from 9,734 in 2012 to 10,287 in 2013, This
trend in growth is expected to continue.

e InJuly 2012, the City approved ordinances consenting to the creation of three in-city Municipal Utility
Districts encompassing over 2,100 acres in Travis County. The property is subject to development
agreements which stipulate the required development standards and facilities that must be constructed.
The agreements also contain provisions for property tax and utility impact fee rebates. Construction of
the development commenced in 2013. At build-out, the development is expected to include
approximately 3,000 residential units,

e In December 2013, the City approved an ordinance consenting to the creation of an in-city Municipal
Utility District encompassing over 198 acres in Williamson County to be known as the Palmera Ridge
Municipal Utility District. The property is subject to a development agreement which stipulates the
required development standards and facilities that must be constructed. The agreement also contains
provisions for utility impact fee rebates, but does not contain any property tax rebates. Construction of
the development is expected in 2014. At build-out, the development is expected to include
approximately 600 residential units.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with a general
overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about
this report or need additional financial information, contact Robert Powers, Finance Director, City of Leander, P.O. Box 319,
Leander, Texas 78646-0319.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS







Functions/Programs

Primary government:

Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Public works -
Parks and recreation
Interest on long term debt

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Utility services
Golf course
Total business-type activities

Total primary government

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Program Revenues
Operating Capital Grants
Charges for Grants and and

Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions

$ 4,828,779 $ 1,687,105 $ 13,238 3 -

8,916,377 761,315 249,380 -
3,217,455 4,152,505 - 12,343,540
1,878,514 124,044 1,792 367,778

1,976,905 - - -
20,818,030 6,724,969 264,410 12,711,318
18,091,925 16,193,418 - 9,276,384

1,385,338 1,167,149 - -
19,477,263 17,360,567 - 9,276,384
$ 40,295,293 $ 24,085,536 $ 264,410 $ 21,987,702

General revenues:
Taxes
Property
Sales
Franchise
Mixed beverage
Interest income
Other income
Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position

Net position - beginning, as restated
Net position - ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Governmental

Business-type
Activities Activities Total

(3,128,436) - (3,128,436)
(7,905,682) - (7,905,682)
13,278,590 - 13,278,590
(1,384,900) - (1,384,900)
(1,976,905) - (1,976,905)
(1,117,333) - (1,117,333)
- 7,377,877 7,371,877

- (218,189) (218,189)

- 7,159,688 7,159,688
(1,117,333) 7,159,688 6,042,355
12,552,676 - 12,552,676
2,613,321 - 2,613,321
1,216,222 - 1,216,222
6,425 - 6,425
14,402 13,473 27,875
46,435 28 46,463

875,000 (875,000) -

17,324,481 (861,499 16,462,982
16,207,148 6,298,189 22,505,337
37,097,151 64,552,646 101,649,797
53,304,299 70,850,835 124,155,134
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Position
As of September 30, 2013

Fund balances of governmental funds 3 11,378,468
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds balance sheet. 92,395,442

Bonds payable and capital leases payable are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, have not been included in the fund financial statements. (50,670,294)

Accrued liabilities for compensated absences and net pension obligation are not due and
payable in the current period and, therefore, have not been included in the fund financial

statements. (740,081)

Interest payable on long-term debt is accrued in the government-wide financial
statements, whereas in the fund financial statements, interest expenditures are reported

when due. (243,703)

Bond issuance costs are recorded as expenditures when paid in the fund financial

statements but are capitalized and amortized in the government-wide financial

statements. 760,306

Revenues from property taxes and fines are deferred in the fund financial statements until

they are considered available to fund current expenditures, but such revenues are

recognized in the government-wide financial statements. 424,161
Net position of governmental activities § 53,304,299

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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REVENUES
Taxes:

Property tax

Franchise tax

Sales tax .
 Mixed beverage tax
Licenses and permits
Grant/intergovernmental
Fines and forfeitures
Interest income
Charges for services
Donations/contributions
Other income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government

Public safety

Public works

Parks and recreation
Debt service

Principal retirement

Interest

Bond issuance costs
Capital outlay -

Total expehditures

Excess (deficiency)
of revenues over
expenditures

OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)
Debt proceeds

Proceeds from sale of assets

Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing
sources and uses

Net change
in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Debt Capital Traffic Impact ~ Nonmajor Total
General Service Projects Analysis Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
$8,019,371  $4,393,567 § - $ - b 186,712 $ 12,599,650
1,216,222 - - - - 1,216,222
2,613,321 - - - - 2,613,321
6,425 - - - - 6,425
3,808,637 - - 129,395 367,778 4,305,810
530,332 - 4,030,000 - 9,595 4,569,927
375,254 - - - 124,534 499,788
6,154 2,700 4,167 966 415 14,402
1,644,622 - - - 61,146 1,705,768
348,823 - 48,587 1,683,403 790 2,081,603
57,114 - - - - 57,114
18,626,275 4,396,267 4,082,754 1,813,764 750,970 29,670,030
4,636,100 - - - 18,970 4,655,070
7,931,104 - - - 65,186 7,996,290
1,754,359 - 5,187 - - 1,759,546
1,429,485 - - - 29,548 1,459,033
72,856 2,265,000 - - - 2,337,856
6,335 1,967,033 - - - 1,973,368
- 11,830 - - - 11,830
259,883 - 7,675,445 3,565,207 60,119 11,560,654
16,090,122 4,243,863 7,680,632 3,565,207 173,823 31,753,647
2,536,153 152,404  (3,597,878)  (1,751,443) 577,147 (2,083,617)
565,000 - - - - 565,000
4,684 - - - 2,209 6,893
1,490,000 - 435,000 370,000 100,000 2,395,000
(1,100,000) - - - (420,000) (1,520,000)
959,684 - 435,000 370,000 (317,791) 1,446,893
3,495,837 152,404  (3,162,878)  (1,381,443) 259,356 (636,724)
4,933,796 452,414 4,803,225 1,407,599 418,158 12,015,192
$8429633 $ 604,818 $1,640347 § 26,156 § 677,514 $11,378,468

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Net change in fund balances --total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlay ($11,566,555) exceeds
depreciation expense ($2,827,772).

The City received street and drainage infrastructure contributed by developers.

Bond issuance costs are expended in the fund financial statements when paid but are
capitalized and amortized in the government-wide financial statements.

Deferred losses on refunding and premiums are amortized over the life of the bonds in the
government-wide financial statements.

Proceeds from issuance of debt are recorded as other financing sources in the fund financial
statements but increase liabilities in the government-wide financial statements.

Principal payments on bonds payable of $2,265,000 and principal paid on capital leases
payable of $72,856 are expenditures in the fund financial statements but are shown as
reductions in long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements.

Additions to liabilities for compensated absences and net pension obligation are not shown in
the fund financial statements. The net effect of the current year's increase is to decrease net
position.

Interest payable on long-term debt is accrued in the government-wide financial statements,
whereas in the fund financial statements, interest expenditures are reported when due. The
decrease in interest accrual from 2012 to 2013 increases net position.

Revenues from property taxes and fines are deferred in the fund financial statements until
they are considered available to fund current expenditures, but such revenues are recognized
in the government-wide statements. The effect of recognizing deferred tax and fines revenue
of $424,161 and removing prior year's deferred tax and fines recognized of $522,861 is to
decrease net position.

Change in net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Traffic Impact Analysis Fund
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Budgeted Amounts
Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
REVENUES
Licenses and permits $ - $ - § 129,395 § 129,395
Interest income - - 966 966
Donations/contributions 2,300,000 2,500,059 1,683,403 (816,656)
Total revenues 2,300,000 2,500,059 1,813,764 (686,295)
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 3,429,260 4,109,260 3,565,207 544,053
Total expenditures 3,429,260 4,109,260 3,565,207 544,053
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (1,129,260) (1,609,201) (1,751,443) (142,242
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - 370,000 370,000 -
Total other financing sources and uses - 370,000 370,000 -
Net change in fund balances (1,129,260) (1,239,201) (1,381,443) (142,242)
Fund balances - beginning 1,407,599 1,407,599 1,407,599 -
Fund balances - ending $ 278339 § 168,398  $ 26,156 $  (142,242)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
As of September 30, 2013

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Utility Golf Course Total Enterprise
ASSETS Fund Fund Funds
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7,345,761 11,205 $ 7,356,966
Accounts receivable, net 1,516,067 1,628 1,517,695
Due from other funds 10,000 - 10,000
Due from other governments 176,639 - 176,639
Inventory - 31,015 31,015
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 5,833,382 - 5,833,382
Total current assets 14,881,849 43,848 14,925,697
Noncurrent assets
Bond issuance costs, net 536,542 - 536,542
Investment in joint venture 2,191,038 - 2,191,038
Capital assets, net:
Nondepreciable property 6,386,028 2,085,585 8,471,613
Depreciable property 113,105,491 967,102 114,072,593
Total noncurrent assets 122,219,099 3,052,687 125,271,786
Total assets 137,100,948 3,096,535 140,197,483
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 564,529 26,083 590,612
Accrued liabilities 42,016 19,924 61,940
Accrued interest payable 491,704 - 491,704
Customer deposits 1,180,374 - 1,180,374
Unearned revenue 271,250 - 271,250
Compensated absences payable - current 4,086 3,374 7,460
Note and bonds payable - current 2,255,246 - 2,255,246
Capital lease obligations - current 5,518 6,641 12,159
Total current liabilities 4,814,723 56,022 4,870,745
Noncurrent liabilities
Net pension obligation 26,995 26,469 53,464
Compensated absences payable 36,776 30,368 67,144
Note payable 10,592,114 - 10,592,114
Bonds payable 53,761,534 - 53,761,534
Capital lease obligations - 1,647 1,647
Total noncurrent liabilities 64,417,419 58,484 64,475,903
Total liabilities 69,232,142 114,506 69,346,648
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 53,687,192 3,044,399 56,731,591
Restricted for capital projects 3,713,393 - 3,713,393
Restricted for debt service 151,699 - 151,699
Unrestricted 10,316,522 (62,370) 10,254,152
Total net position 67,868,806 2,982,029 $ 70,850,835

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Utility Golf Course Total Enterprise
Fund Fund Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for sales and services $ 16,152,139 3 1,167,149 3 17,319,288
Other revenue 41,279 - 41,279
Total operating revenues 16,193,418 1,167,149 17,360,567
OPERATING EXPENSES
Utility operations 12,831,979 - 12,831,979
Golf course operations - 1,319,308 1,319,308
Depreciation and amortization 2,552,002 66,030 2,618,032
Total operating expenses 15,383,981 1,385,338 16,769,319
Operating income (loss) 809,437 (218,189) 591,248
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Proceeds from the sale of assets 28 - 28
Interest income 13,472 1 13,473
Interest expense and fees (2,707,944) - (2,707,944)
Total nonoperating revenue (expenses) (2,694,444) 1 (2,694,443)
Income before contributions and transfers (1,885,007) (218,188) (2,103,195)
Capital contributions from developers 5,517,868 - 5,517,868
Capital contributions from impact fees 3,758,516 - 3,758,516
Transfers in _ 290,000 195,000 485,000
Transfers out (1,360,000) - (1,360,000)
Change in net position 6,321,377 (23,188) 6,298,189
Total net position - beginning, as restated 61,547,429 3,005,217 64,552,646
Total net position - ending 3 67,868,806 3 2,982,029 $ 70,850,835

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Total
Utility Golf Course Enterprise
Fund Fund Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users $ 16,225593 § 1,167,209 $ 17,392,802
Payments to employees (625,346) (585,731) (1,211,077)
Payments to suppliers (12,219,163) (730,311) (12,949.,474)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 3,381,084 (148,833) 3,232,251
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers (to) from other funds (1,070,000) 195,000 (875,000)
Payments to other funds (90,913) - (90,913)
Net cash (used) provided by noncapital
financing activities (1,160,913) 195,000 (965,913)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from the sale of assets 28 - 28
Capital contributions- impact fees and others 3,758,516 - 3,758,516
Acquisition of capital assets (3,644,348) (6,500) (3,650,848)
Principal paid on long-term debt (2,243,953) (30,867) (2,274,820)
Interest paid on long-term debt (2,498,990) - (2,498,990)
Net cash used by capital and related
financing activities (4,628,747) (37,367) (4,666,114)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received on pooled investments 13,472 1 13,473
Net cash provided by investing activities 13,472 1 13,473
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (2,395,104) 8,801 (2,386,303)
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 15,574,247 2,404 15,576,651
Cash and cash equivalents - end of the year 3 13,179,143  § 11,205 $ 13,190,348
Reported as:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,520,204 § 11,205 % 8,531,409
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 4,658,939 - 4,658,939
$ 13,179,143 § 11,205 $ 13,190,348

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Total
Utility Golf Course Enterprise
Fund Fund Funds

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss) $ 809,437 § (218,189) $ 591,248
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 2,552,002 66,030 2,618,032
Decrease in investment in joint venture 806,917 - 806,917
Decrease in accounts receivable 84,958 60 85,018
Increase in inventory - (5,774) (5,774)
Increase in customer deposits 63,467 - 63,467
Decrease in accounts payable (855,011) (1,579) (856,590)
Increase in accrued liabilities 35,564 10,619 46,183
Decrease in unearned revenue (116,250) - (116,250)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities b 3,381,084 $ (148,833) ¢ 3,232,251
NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Infrastructure contributed by developers $ 5,517,868 § - $ 5,517,868

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended September 30, 2013

Note 1:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — continued
The City maintains the following major enterprise fund:

The utility fund accounts for the City’s water and wastewater utilities, including operations, maintenance of the
infrastructure, and expansion of the system within the City’s service territory.

The City maintains the following nonmajor enterprise fund:

The golf course fund accounts for the City’s golf course, including operations and maintenance of the grounds and
equipment.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items, Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from providing services in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal
operating revenues of the City’s utility and golf course funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating
expenses include cost of services and depreciation expense on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted resources first,
and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. Additionally, the City would first use committed, then assigned, and lastly
unassigned amounts of unrestricted fund balance when expenditures are made.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.
Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City’s water and sewer function and various other functions of the
government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenue reported for the various
functions concerned.

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity
Cash and cash equivalents - For purposes of the statement of cash flows for the proprietary fund types, the City considers all

highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with an original maturity of three months or less from purchase to be
cash equivalents.

Investments — Investments are reported at fair value, and the changes in the fair value of investments are recognized as
investment revenue.

Inventory — Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market using the first-in/first-out (FIFQ) method.

Restricted assets — Restricted assets include capital recovery fees (impact fees) that are, by law, restricted for future capital
improvements, customer deposits, and assets set aside for construction of future debt funded capital improvements.

Receivables — Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the
fiscal year are referred to as “due to/from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental
activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. Trade accounts receivable in excess
of 60 days comprise the trade accounts receivable allowance for uncollectibles. The property tax receivable allowance is
based on historical collection rate percentages.

Property taxes are levied by October 1 in conformity with Subtitle E, Texas Property Tax Code. Taxes are due on receipt of
the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before February 1 of the year following the year in which imposed. On February 1
of each year, a tax lien attaches to property to secure the payment of all taxes, penalties, and interest ultimately imposed. The
Williamson and Travis Central Appraisal Districts (CAD) establish appraised values.

Taxes are levied by the City Council based on the appraised values received from each CAD. The Williamson and Travis
County Tax Assessors bill and collect the levied taxes.
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended September 30, 2013

Note3: Deposits and Investments

Cash and Cash Investments

Cash balances for most of the City’s funds are consolidated in pooled cash and investment accounts. Pooled balances include
balances in demand deposits, local government investment pools, and certificates of deposit. Interest earnings are then
allocated to each fund based on ending monthly pooled equity balances. Separate cash and investment accounts are
maintained for interest and sinking funds (debt service).

Custodial credit risk — deposits. At September 30, 2013, all of the City’s deposits were covered by federal depository
insurance and pledged securities held by the City’s depository agent in the City’s name.

Investments

The City’s investment policies and types of investments are governed by the Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA). These
policies authorize the City to invest in (1) obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities, (2) certificates
of deposit by state and national banks doing business in Texas that are (a) guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation or its successor or {b) secured by obligations in a manner and amount provided by law for deposits of
the City, (3) money market mutual funds that are (a) registered and regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission,
(b) have a dollar weighted average stated maturity of 90 days or less, (c) rated AAA by at least one nationally recognized
rating service, and (d) seek to maintain a net asset value of $1.00 per share, (4) constant-dollar Texas local government
investment pools which (a) meet the requirements of PFIA, (b) are rated no lower than AAA or an equivalent rating by at
least one nationally recognized rating service, and (c) are authorized by resolution or ordinance by the City Council, (5) fully
collateralized repurchase agreements with a bank in Texas or a primary dealer, executed under the Bond Market Master
Repurchase Agreement in accordance with the PFIA not to exceed 120 days.

As of September 30, 2013, the City had the following investments:

Fair Percentage Credit Investment Maturity
Investment Type Value of Total Rating Less than 1 Year
Texas Term $ 1,046,141 6.08% AAAm $ 1,046,141
TexSTAR 2,908,443 16.90% AAAm 2,908,443
TexPool 7,230,675 42.02% AAAm 7,230,675
Certificate of Deposits 6,020,718 34.99% N/A 6,020,718
Total Portfolio $ 17,205,977 100.00% $ 17,205,977

Investment pools are not categorized as to investment risk since specific securities relating to the government cannot be
identified. The City utilizes the following local government investment pools for its short-term liquidity investment needs:
Texas Short Term Asset Reserve Program (TexSTAR), Texas Local Government Investment Pool (TexPool), and Texas
Term. The reported values of the pools are the same as the fair value of the pool shares.

Under the TexPool Participation Agreement, administrative and investment services to TexPool are provided by Federated
Investors, Inc. through an agreement with the State of Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts, The State Comptroller is the
sole officer, director, and shareholder of the Texas Treasury Safekeeping Trust Company authorized to operate TexPool.
TexPool is subject to annual review by an independent auditor consistent with the Public Funds Investment Act. Audited
financial statements of the Pool are available at First Public, 12008 Research Blvd., Austin, Texas 78759. In addition,
TexPool is subject to review by the State Auditor’s Office and by the Internal Auditor of the Comptroller’s Office.

The Texas Short Term Asset Reserve Fund (TexSTAR) is a local government investment pool organized under the authority
of the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791, Texas Government Code, and the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter
2256, Texas Government Code. TexSTAR is governed by a board of directors (the Board) and is co-administered by J.P.
Morgan Investment Management, Inc. and First Southwest Asset Management, Inc.
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended September 30, 2013

Note 3: Deposits and Investments — continued

The Texas Term Local Government Investment Pool (TexasTERM) is a local government investment pool organized under
the authority of the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791, Texas Government Code and the Public Funds Investment Act,
Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code. TexasTERM is administered by PFM Asset Management LLC, who also serves as
the investment advisor.

Interest rate risk. In accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its exposure to declines in fair values by
limiting the weighted average maturity of its investment portfolio to 365 days. The maximum allowable stated maturity of
any individual investment owned by the City shall not exceed two years from the time of purchase.

Credit risk. State law and City policy limit investments in local government investment pools to those rated no lower than
AAA or an equivalent rating by at least one nationally recognized rating service. The City’s investments are rated as to credit
quality as shown in the above table.

Concentration of credit risk. The City’s investment policy does not limit investments in any one issuer except that the

investment portfolio shall be diversified in terms of investment instruments, maturity scheduling, and continuously investing
a portion of the portfolio in readily available funds such as local government investment pools.

Restricted Assets

As of September 30, 2013, the City held restricted cash and investments of $5,833,382, for the following purposes:

Utility - construction b 4,501,309
Utility - customer deposits 1,180,374
Utility - debt service 151,699

Total restricted cash and investments $ 5,833,382

Note4: Receivables

Receivables as of September 30, 2013 for the City’s individual major funds and nonmajor funds in the aggregate, including
the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

General Debt Service Utility Nonmajor Total

Receivables:

Taxes $ 907,578 $ 58,238 $ - 3 -3 965,816
Accounts 1,893,318 - 2,318,800 1,628 4,213,746
Gross receivables 2,800,896 58,238 2,318,800 1,628 5,179,562
Less: allowance for

uncollectibles (1,493,789) (10,903) (802,733) - (2,307,425)

Net total receivables $ 1,307,107 $ 47335 § 1,516,067 $ 1,628 §$ 2,872,137
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended September 30, 2013

Note 5:  Capital Assets

A summary of changes in capital assets follows:

Governmental Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Capital assets, net

Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Capital assets, net

Beginning
Balance Additions Retirements Ending Balance
1,734,940 $ - 3 - 3 1,734,940
12,465,376 11,396,246 - 23,861,622
14,200,316 11,396,246 - 25,596,562
18,871,651 - - 18,871,651 °
7,971,727 170,309 - 8,148,036
53,111,769 6,571,955 - 59,683,724
79,961,147 6,742,264 - 86,703,411
(4,310,077) (759,584) - (5,069,661)
(4,953,159) (657,944) - (5,611,103)
(7,813,523) (1,410,244) - (9,223,767)
(17,076,759) (2,827,772) - (19,904,531) -

77,084,704 §

15,310,738 §

- S 92,395,442

Beginning
Balance Additions Retirements Ending Balance
2,331,833 3 -5 - 3 2,331,833
8,052,343 3,560,737 (5,473,300) 6,139,780
10,384,176 3,560,737 (5,473,300) 8,471,613
1,350,034 - - 1,350,034
1,622,887 31,383 - 1,654,270
119,520,178 11,049,894 - 130,570,072
122,493,099 11,081,277 - 133,574,376
(404,836) (53,802) (458,638) -
(837,764) (72,736) (910,500}
(15,633,164) (2,499,481) (18,132,645)
(16,875,764) (2,626,019) - (19,501,783)

116,001,511 3

12,015,995 §

(5,473,300) § 122,544,206
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended September 30, 2013

Note7: Long-term Debt

The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013:

Balance Retirements/ Balance Due Within
October 1 Issued Refunding September 30 One Year
Governmental activities
Bonds $ 52,315,000 § - $ (2,265,000) 3% 50,050,000 § 2,145,000
Premium 2,559,356 - (158,699) 2,400,657 158,699
Deferred loss on refunding (2,499,447) - 151,092 (2,348,355) (151,092)
Net bonds payable 52,374,909 - (2,272,607) 50,102,302 2,152,607
PPEC tax pledge - 565,000 - 565,000 78,750
Capital leases 75,848 - (72,856) 2,992 2,992
Net pension obligation 327,337 58,528 - 385,865 -
Compensated absences 333,130 21,086 - 354,216 35,422
Total governmental activity
Long-term liabilities $ 53,111,224 § 644,614 § (2,345,463) $ 51,410,375 § 2,269,771
Business-type Activities
Bonds $ 56,610,000 § - $ (1,753,000) $ 54,857,000 $ 1,776,000
Premium 1,768,303 - (139,788) 1,628,515 139,788
Deferred loss on refunding (1,007,675) - 99,741 (907,934) (99,741)
Net bonds payable 57,370,628 - (1,793,047) 55,577,581 1,816,047
Note payable 11,457,720 - (426,407) 11,031,313 439,199
Capital leases 109,219 - (95,413) 13,806 12,159
Net pension obligation 41,784 11,680 - 53,464 -
Compensated absences 62,892 11,712 - 74,604 7,460
Total Business-type Activity
Long-term liabilities $ 69,042,243 § 23392 § (2,314,867) $ 66,750,768 $§ 2,274,865

For the governmental activities, the debt service fund has generally been used to liquidate general obligation bonds, and the
general fund has been used to liquidate compensated absences, net pension obligation, and capital leases payable.
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Year Ended September 30, 2013
Note 7:  Long-term Debt — continued

Governmental Activities

General Obligation Bonds:

A summary of Tax-Supported General Obligation Debt outstanding at September 30, 2013 follows:

$4,245,000 Series 2005 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, due in annual installments of $25,000 to
$350,000 through August 15, 2025; interest at 4.0% to 4.25%. $ 3,090,000

$21,210,000 Series 2007 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, due in annual installments of
$1,015,000 and $195,000 through August 15, 2017; interest at 3.95% to 4.00%. 650,000

$4,630,000 Series 2009 Refunding Bonds, due in annual installments of $125,000 to $1,010,000
through August 15, 2017; interest at 3.00% to 3.25%. 3,080,000

$20,505,000 Series 2010 General Obligation and Refunding Bonds, due in annual installments of
$265,000 to $3,370,000 through August 15, 2030; interest at 2,.00% to 4.00%. 20,505,000

$19,165,000 ($12,920,000 allocated to tax supported debt) Series 2012-A Refunding Bonds, due in
annual installments of $1,620,000 to $2,070,000 through August 15, 2027; interest at 3.00% to 5.00%. 12,920,000

$14,310,000 ($10,875,000 allocated to tax supported debt) Series 2012 Refunding Bonds, due in annual
installments of $280,000 to $1,170,000 through August 15, 2024; interest at 2.00% to 5.00%. 9,805,000

Total general obligation bonds $ 50,050,000

The annual requirements to retire general long-term debt, including interest, as of September 30, 2013 are as follows:

Year Ending General Obligation Bonds Total
September 30 Principal Interest - Requirements
2014 $ 2,145,000 $ 1,921,886 $ 4,066,886
2015 3,555,000 1,863,611 5,418,611
2016 4,340,000 1,740,835 6,080,835
2017 3,780,000 1,562,793 5,342,793
2018 3,955,000 1,426,143 5,381,143
2019-2023 19,575,000 4,765,185 24,340,185
2024-2028 11,745,000 1,245,613 12,990,613
2029-2033 955,000 57,600 1,012,600
Totals $ 50,050,000 $ 14,583,666 $ 64,633,666

The ordinances authorizing the issuance of general obligation bonds created an interest and sinking fund (debt service fund).
The ordinances require the City to ascertain a rate of ad valorem tax that will be sufficient to pay the principal and interest as
they become due.
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended September 30, 2013

Note 7:  Long-term Debt — continued

Note Payable:
The City obtained a loan with an effective interest rate of 1.640% to purchase a new fire engine during the year ended

September 30, 2013. The City shall pay the required payments in semi-annual installments over a period of seven years with
the first principal and interest payment to occur on February 15, 2014, The loan is collateralized by the fire engine.

The annual requirements to retire the note payable, including interest, as of September 30, 2013 are as follows:

September 30 Principal Interest Requirements
2014 $ 78,750 §$ 9,961 $ 88,711
2015 79,396 7,974 87,370
2016 80,047 6,672 86,719
2017 80,704 5,360 86,064
2018 81,365 4,036 85,401

2019-2023 164,738 4,058 168,796
Total $ 565,000 $ 38,061 $ 603,061

Business-type Activities

Revenue Bonds:

A summary of Revenue Debt outstanding at September 30, 2013 follows;

$2,155,000 Series 2003 Waterworks and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, due in annual installments
of $75,000 to $155,000 through February 15, 2023; interest at 4.32%. $ 1,175,000

$7,150,000 Series 2010 Refunding Bonds, due in annual installments of $745,000 to $1,525,000
through August 15, 2020, interest 2.0% to 4.0%. 7,150,000

$36,270,000 Series 2012 Combination Tax & Revenue Certificates of Obligation, due in annual
installments of $735,000 to $2,190,000 through August 15, 2036; interest at 2% to 5%. 34,495,000

$3,000,000 Series 2012 Tax Notes, due in annual installments of $583,000 to $617,000 through July 1,
2017; interest at 1.42%. 2,417,000

$19,165,000 ($6,245,000 allocated to revenue supported debt) Series 2012-A Refunding Bonds, due in
annual installments of $530,000 to $740,000 through August 15, 2027; interest at 3.00% to 5.00%. 6,245,000

$14,310,000 ($3,435,000 allocated to revenue supported debt) Series 2012 Refunding Bonds, due in
annual installments of $5,000 to $720,000 through August 15, 2024; interest at 2.00% to 5.00%. 3,375,000

Total revenue bonds $ 54,857,000

The revenue bonds are payable from a pledge of the surplus revenues derived from the operation of the City’s combined
Waterworks and Sewer system, after payment of all operation and maintenance expenses. The 2003 Waterworks and Sewer
Revenue Refunding Bonds require a reserve equal to the average annual debt service requirements on the outstanding bonds,
which equals $140,925 at September 30, 2013. The City has $151,699 in their bond reserve fund at September 30, 2013.
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Year Ended September 30, 2013
Note 7:  Long-term Debt — continued

The annual requirements to retire revenue bonds, including interest, as of September 30, 2013 are as follows:

Year Ending Revenue Bonds Total
September 30 Principal Interest Requirements
2014 $ 1,776,000 $ 2,123,077 § 3,899,077
2015 2,585,000 2,061,485 4,646,485
2016 2,659,000 1,995,349 4,654,349
2017 3,007,000 1,926,769 4,933,769
2018 3,380,000 1,827,569 5,207,569
2019-2023 15,525,000 7,253,426 22,778,426
2024-2028 11,365,000 4,480,963 15,845,963
2029-2033 9,665,000 2,383,988 12,048,988
2034-2038 4,895,000 404,100 5,299,100
Total $ 54,857,000 $ 24,456,726 §$ 79,313,726

Contract Revenue Debt;

During July 2009, the Brushy Creek Regional Utility Authority issued $182 million of Contract Revenue Bonds, Series 2009,
which were purchased by the Texas Water Development Board. These Bonds were issued to finance the Brushy Creek
Regional Water Treatment and Distribution Project. Additional information in regards to this project can be found in the joint
venture note disclosure included in these financial statements. The City is obligated to repay $91.2 million of the Contract
Revenue Bonds. The Cities of Round Rock and Cedar Park, Texas are obligated to repay the remaining $90.8 million of the
Bonds. The interest rates on these Bonds are 2.624% to 5.084%.

The contract revenue bonds are payable from a pledge of the surplus revenues derived from the operation of the City's
combined Waterworks and Sewer System, after payment of all operation and maintenance expenses.

The annual requirements to retire contract revenue debt, including interest, as of September 30, 2013, are as follows:

Year Ending Contract Revenue Debt Total
September 30 Principal Interest Requirements
2014 $ 1,000,000 $ 4,272,361 § 5,272,361
2015 1,500,000 4,243,721 5,743,721
2016 1,850,000 4,197,311 6,047,311
2017 2,175,000 4,136,187 6,311,187
2018 2,290,000 4,059,975 6,349,975
2019-2023 13,390,000 18,850,793 32,240,793
2024-2028 17,295,000 15,537,708 32,832,708
2029-2033 22,335,000 10,834,316 33,169,316
2034-2038 28,845,000 4,549,417 33,394,417
Total $ 90,680,000 $ 70,681,789 § 161,361,789
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended September 30, 2013

Note 8: Retirement Plan

Plan Description

The City provides pension benefits for all of its eligible employees through a non-traditional, joint contributory, hybrid
defined benefit plan in the state-wide Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS), an agent multiple-employer public
employee retirement system. The plan provisions that have been adopted by the City are within the options available in the
governing state statutes of TMRS.

TMRS issues a publicly available, comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information (RSI) for TMRS. The report also provides detailed explanations of the contributions, benefits, and
actuarial methods and assumptions used by the System. This report may be obtained from the TMRS web site at
www. TMRS.com.

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City within the options available in the state statutes governing
TMRS. Plan provisions for the City were as follows:

Plan Year 2012 Plan Year 2013
Employee deposit rate 7% 7%
Matching ratio (city to employee) 2to1 2to1
Years required for vesting 5 5
Service retirement eligibility :
(expressed as age / years of service) 60/5, 0/20 60/5, 0/20
Updated Service Credit 100% Repeating, Transfers 100% Repeating, Transfers
Annuity Increase (to retirees) 70% of CPI Repeating 70% of CPI Repeating
Contributions

Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each City is determined annually by the actuary, using the
Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method. This rate consists of the normal cost contribution rate and the prior service cost
contribution rate, which is calculated to be a level percent of payroll from year to year. The normal cost contribution rate
finances the portion of an active member’s projected benefit allocated annually. The prior service contribution rate amortizes
the unfunded actuarial liability over the applicable period for that City. Both the normal cost and prior service contribution
rates include recognition of the projected impact of annually repeating benefits, such as Updated Service Credits and Annuity
Increases.

The City contributes to the TMRS Plan at an actuarially determined rate. Both the employees and the City make monthly
contributions. Since the City needs to know its contribution rate in advance for budgetary purposes, there is a one-year delay
between the actuarial valuation that serves as the basis for the rate and the calendar year when the rate goes into effect. The
annual pension cost and net pension obligation are as follows:

Annual required contribution (ARC) 3 1,129,890
Interest on Net Pension obligation 25,838
Adjustment to ARC (22,701)
Annual Pension Cost (expense) 1,133,027
Contributions made (1,062,819)
Increase (decrease) in net pension obligation 70,208
Net Pension Obligation - as of beginning of year 369,121
Net Pension Obligation - as of end of year 3 439,329
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Note 8:  Retirement Plan — continued
Trend Information
For Annual Net Employer Percentage of Net Pension
Year Ending Pension Cost Contribution APC Contributed Obligation
9/30/2011 $ 994,643 § 888,178 89.3% 282,481
9/30/2012 1,076,931 990,291 92.0% 369,121
9/30/2013 1,133,027 1,062,819 93.8% 439,329

The required contribution rates for fiscal year 2013 were determined as part of the December 31, 2010 and 2011 actuarial
valuations. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation, December 31, 2012, also follows:

Valuation Date

12/31/2010 12/31/2011

12/31/2012

Actuarial Cost Method

Amortization Method
GASB 25 Equivalent

Projected Unit Credit Projected Unit Credit

Level Percent of Payroll
27.5 Years - Closed

Level Percent of Payroll
26.6 Years - Closed

Projected Unit Credit

Level Percent of Payroll
25.5 Years - Closed

Single Amortization Period Period Period Period
Amortization Period for new
Gains/Losses 30 years 30 years 30 years
10-year smoothed 10-year smoothed 10-year smoothed
Asset Valuation Method Market Market Market
Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment Rate of Return* 7.0% 7.0% 7.0%
Varies by age and Varies by age and Varies by age and
Projected Salary Increases* service service service
* Includes Inflation at 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%
Cost-of-living Adjustments 2.1% 21% 2.1%
Funded Status and Funding Progress
The funded status as of December 31, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation date, is presented as follows:
Schedule of Actuarial Liabilities and Funding Progress
UAAL asa
Actuarial Actuarial Percentage of
Actuarial Value of Accrued Funded Unfunded AAL Covered Covered
Valuation Date Assets Liability (AAL) Ratio (UAAL) Payroll Payroll
A) B) (A)/(B) D =B)-A) B DY(E)
12/31/2010 $ 8,546,238 $ 14,074,172 60.7% $ 5,527,934 $ 8,160,788 67.7%
12/31/2011 10,253,804 15,454,276 66.3% 5,200,472 8,581,463 60.6%
12/31/2012 12,197,646 17,349,952 70.3% 5,152,306 8,962,158 57.5%

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far
into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future,

Actuarial calculations are based on the benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan in effect at the time of each
valuation and reflect a long-term perspective. Consistent with that perspective, actuarial methods and assumptions used
include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
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Note 9: Commitments — continued

The City has capitalized its portion of cost related to the Brushy Creek Regional Wastewater System. In June 2010, the City
purchased reserved capacity in the system components for the price of $10,800,000 which was financed with a note payable
to mature in fiscal year 2032. The BRA is contracted to provide operation of the system, for which each of the cities is
invoiced relative to their system usage. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, Leander’s share of expenses for
operation of the regional facilities was $357,333.

Economic Development Agreement

The City has entered into an economic development agreement with a shopping center. Under the terms of the agreement, the
City refunds 50% of sales tax collections on sales made by the shopping center in the state of Texas. The shopping center
represents approximately 16.66% of the City’s sales tax collections for the year ended September 30, 2013.

Construction Commitments

Outstanding construction commitments are as follows at September 30:

Remaining
Award Commitment

Governmental activities

CR 179 § 4,168,681 b 548,976
Mel Mathis Blvd 5,412,628 173,727
Old 2243 West 776,304 754,928
County Glen Drainage 2,061,454 116,398
E Crystal Falls 2B 2,233,924 2,233,924

§ 14,652,991 $ 3,827,953

Business-type activities

Hero Way Waterline $ 88,300 $ 48,064
Crystal Falls EST 3,307,954 804,821
Raw Water Intake contingency 1/a- cost share 1,552,300

§ 3,396,254 $ 2,405,185

Note 10: Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, errors and
omissions, injuries to employees, and other claims of various natures. These risks are covered by commercial insurance
purchased from independent third parties and through Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool (TML-IRP), a
public entity risk pool for the benefit of governmental units located within the state. TML-IRP is considered a self-sustaining
risk pool that provides coverage for its members. The City’s contributions to the Pool are limited to the amount of premiums
as calculated at the beginning of each fund year. Premiums reflect the claims experience to date of the City. The Pool’s
liability is limited to the coverage that the City elects as stated in the Pool’s Declarations of Coverage for that fund year. The
City has had no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the previous year, and claims have not exceeded coverage in
the last three years.

Note 11: Joint Venture

Brushy Creek Regional Utility Authority

The City entered into an agreement dated September 2, 2008 with the Cities of Round Rock and Cedar Park, Texas, along
with the Brushy Creek Regional Utility Authority for the financing, construction, and operation of the BCRUA regional
water treatment and distribution project (BCRUA Project).
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Note 11: Joint Venture - continued

In July 2009, the BCRUA issued $182 million of Contract Revenue Bonds, which were purchased by the Texas Water
Development Board. These Bonds were issued to finance the Brushy Creek Regional Water Treatment and Distribution
Project in accordance with the bylaws of the BCRUA. The City is obligated to repay $91.2 million of these Bonds, which is
based on its reserved capacity of 47.22%. The Cities of Round Rock and Cedar Park, Texas are obligated to repay the
remaining $90.8 million of the Bonds. Separate financial statements of BCRUA can be obtained at 221 E. Main Street,
Round Rock, Texas 78664.

The City accounts for this partnership as a joint venture. The City’s equity interest is calculated in accordance with the
agreement with BCRUA. The City shares in the operating results of this joint venture so the City adjusts its equity interest by
the amount of its participating share of the joint venture’s change in net position. Condensed financial statements for
BCRUA are as follows:

Statement of Net Position

As of September 30, 2013
Leander's
BCRUA Interest
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,200,985 $ 5,132,513
Investments 7,738,891 6,890,001
Other current assets 459,676 424,108
Restricted investments 26,208,772 7,944,467
Deferred charges, net 770,872 379,000
Capital assets 153,566,942 74,174,575
Total Assets 199,946,138 94,944,664
Liabilities
Accounts payable 538,922 273,392
Retainage payable 2,345,205 1,103,653
Accrued bond interest payable 1,369,716 696,581
Bonds payable 178,605,000 90,680,000
Total Liabilities 182,858,843 92,753,626
Net Position $ 17,087,295 $ 2,191,038
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position
Year Ended September 30, 2013
Leander's
BCRUA Interest
Operating revenues $ 985,682 3 417,465
Operating expenses 13,250,298 6,243,383
Other income 212,108 76,304
Change in Net Position (12,052,508) (5,749,614)
Net position, October 1, 2012 18,441,816 2,997,955
Contribution of capital, net 10,697,987 4,942,697
Net position, September 30, 2013 $ 17,087,295 $ 2,191,038
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Customer deposits

Due to other funds
Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS

Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

As of September 30, 2013
Court Court Parks Police
Security Technology Dedication Special Revenue
Fund Fund Fund Fund
$ 28,664 24,555 % 449,606 $ 37,004
$ 28,664 _§ 24,555  _$ 449,606 _§ 37,004
$ - $ - $ - $ -
28,664 24,555 - -
- - 449,606 37,004
28,664 24,555 449,606 37,004
$ 28,664 $ 24,555 % 449,606  _§ 37,004







ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Customer deposits
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES

Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - Continued
As of September 30, 2013

Total
Hotel Parks Nonmajor
CID/HRT Occupancy Special Revenue Governmental
Fund _ Fund Fund Funds
$ 2,206 $ 473 $ 6,868 $ 688,319
$ 2,206 § 473 3 6,868 $ 688,319
b - $ - b 555 b 555
- - 250 250
- - - 10,000
- - 805 10,805
2,206 473 - 145,297
- - - 531,670
- - 6,063 6,063
- - - (5,516)
2,206 473 6,063 677,514
3 2,206 $ 473 3 6,868 $ 688,319
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Court Parks Police
Security Dedication Special Revenue
Fund Fund Fund
REVENUES
Taxes $ - - $ -
Licenses, permits and fees - 367,778 -
Intergovernmental - - -
Fines and forfeitures 11,179 - -
Charges for services - - 16,105
Contributions - 38 -
Interest 13 140 14
Total revenues 11,192 367,956 16,119
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government - - -
Public safety 6,130 - 1,225
Parks and recreation - 4,527 -
Capital outlay - 60,119 -
Total expenditures 6,130 64,646 1,225
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 5,062 303,310 14,894
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from the sale of assets - - -
Transfers in - 100,000 -
Transfers out - - -
Total other financing
sources and uses - 100,000 -
Net change in fund balances 5,062 403,310 14,894
Fund balances - beginning 23,602 46,296 22,110
Fund balances - ending $ 28,664 449,606 3 37,004




Police Fire Public
Forfeitures Rescue Step TIRZ #1 Arts
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
- $ - - $ 186,712 -
- - 98,451 - -
- 16,636 - - -
- - - - 752
2 17 26 190 2
2 16,653 98,477 186,902 754
- - - 9,336 -
550 2,429 46,798 - -
- - - - 2,677
550 2,429 46,798 9,336 2,677
(548) 14,224 51,679 177,566 (1,923)
- - - (420,000} -
- - - (420,000) -
(548) 14,224 51,679 (242,434) (1,923)
3,515 27,629 34,753 236,918 5,130
2967 % 41,853 86432 (8 5,516) 3,207
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - Continued
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Hotel Parks Total Nonmajor
CID/HRT Occupancy Special Revenue Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds
REVENUES
Taxes $ - $ - $ - $ 186,712
Licenses, permits and fees - - - 367,778
Intergovernmental 9,595 - - 9,595
Fines and forfeitures - - - 124,534
Charges for services - - 28,405 61,146
Contributions - - - 790
Interest 1 - 2 415
Total revenues 9,596 - 28,407 750,970
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 9,634 - - 18,970
Public safety - - - 65,186
Parks and recreation - - 22,344 29,548
Capital outlay - - - 60,119
Total expenditures 9,634 - 22,344 173,823
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (38) - 6,063 577,147
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from the sale of assets 2,209 - - 2,209
Transfers in - - - 100,000
Transfers out - - - (420,000)
Total other financing
sources and uses 2,209 - - (317,791)
Net change in fund balances 2,171 - 6,063 259,356
Fund balances - beginning 35 473 - 418,158
Fund balances - ending $ 2,206 $ 473  §$ 6,063 §$ 677,514
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First Financial Bank Building

Davis Kinard & CO, PC 400 Pine Street, Ste. 600, Abilene, TX 79601

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 325.672.4000 / 800.588.2525 / f: 325.672.7049
Quality. Integrity. Knowledge. www.dkepa.com

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Program
and on Internal Control over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133

The Honorable Mayor _
and Members of the City Council
City of Leander, Texas

Report on Compliance for Each Major Fedeial Program

We have audited the City of Leander, Texas’, (the City) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in
the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the City’s major
federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2013. The City’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its
federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City’s major federal programs based on our audit of
the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the stahdards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Thosé standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2013.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the
City’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each
major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal
control over compliance. ‘
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and
correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is
not suitable for any other purpose.

De finedd + (3, PC

Certified Public Accountants

Abilene, Texas
February 11, 2014
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended September 30, 2013

CFDA Federal
Grantor/Program Title Number Grant Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Transportation:
Passed Through Texas Department of Transportation:
Federal Highway Administration:
Highway Planning and Construction
STP Metropolitan Mobility Project 20.205 CSJ0914-05-149 $§ 4,030,000
Total Department of Transportation 4,030,000
U.S. Department of Homeland Security:
Direct:
Federal Emergency Management Agency
Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program:
Staffing for Adequate Fire/Emergency Response 97.083 EMW-2012-FH-00246 90,207
Passed through Texas Department of Public Safety
Division of Emergency Management:
Fire Management Assistance Grant 97.046 FM 2922, 2949, 2963 187,275
Total Passed through Texas Department of Public Safety 187,275
Total Department of Homeland Security 277,482
Total Federal Awards $ 4,307,482
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Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended September 30, 2013

Reporting Entity

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (“Schedule”) presents the activity of all applicable federal awards
of the City. The City’s reporting entity is defined in Note 1 of the basic financial statements. Federal awards passed
through other governmental agencies are included on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

Basis of Accounting

The Schedule is prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The modified accrual basis of accounting is
described in Note 1 of the basic financial statements. Federal grants are considered to be earned to the extent of
expenditures made under the provisions of the grant, and accordingly, when such funds are received, they are
recorded as deferred revenue until earned.

The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may
differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

Relationship to Federal Financial Reports

The information included in the Schedule may not fully agree with other federal award reports that the City submits

to granting agencies because, among other reasons, the award reports may be prepared for a different fiscal period
and may include cumulative (from prior years) data rather than data for the current year only.
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2013

A. Summary of Auditor’s Results

1.

2.

8.

9.

Type of auditor’s report issued on the financial statements: Unmodified

No significant deficiencies required to be reported in this schedule were disclosed in the audit of the financial
statements.

Noncompliance which is material to the financial statements: None

No significant deficiencies required to be reported in this schedule were disclosed in the audit of the major
programs.

Type of auditor’s report on compliance for major programs: Unmodified
Did the audit disclose findings which are required to be reported under Sec. 510(a): No

Major programs include:
CFDA 20.205 Highway Planning and Construction

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $300,000

Low risk auditee: No

B. Findings Related to the Financial Statements

None

C. Findings and Questioned Costs Related to the Federal Award Programs

None
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2013

A Single Audit was not required in the prior year.

53




- First Financial Bank Building
D) Ki & CO PC 400 Pine Street, Ste. 600, Abilene, TX 79601
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Quality. Integrity. Knowledge. www.dkcpa.com

Febmary 11, 2014

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Leander, Texas

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Leander, Texas (the City) for the year ended September 30, 2013.
Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted
auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and OMB Circular A-133, as well as certain information related to the
planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated September 7, 2013.
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting policies
used by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the
application of existing policies was not changed during 2013. We noted no transactions entered into by the governmental unit
during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been
recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain
accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the
possibility that future events affecting them miay differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates
affecting the City’s financial statements were:

Management’s estimate of the future useful lives of capital assets is based on knowledge and experience
about past and current events and assumptions about future events. We evaluated the key factors and
assumptions used to develop the future useful lives of capital assets in determining that they are reasonable
in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Management’s estimate of the ret pension obligation for TMRS. is based on actuarial methods and
assumptions provided by third party actuaries. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to
develop the net pension obligation for TMRS in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

Management’s estimate of the allowance for uncollectible receivables is based on knowledge and
experience with past collectability of receivables. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to
develop the allowance for uncollectible receivables in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the
financial statements taken as a whole.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statement users.
The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were:

The disclosure of the TMRS defined benefit retirement plan in Note 8 to the financial statements.
Information for this disclosure is provided by TMRS. The amounts are based on actuarial estimates
provided by a third party.

The disclosure of deposit and investment risks in Note 3
The disclosure of long-term debt in Note 7

The disclosure of commitments in Note 9

The disclosure of joint venture in Note 11

The disclosure of prior period adjustments in Note 12

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.







City of Leander
Schedule of Corrected Misstatements
September 30, 2013

Account No. Account Description Debit Credit
(1) To roll utility fund net position
20-00-2335 Bond Issuance Premium 4,558
20-00-2601 Deferred Loss on Bond Ref 302,698
20-00-3100 Fund Balance Unassigned 307,256
307,256 307,256
(2) To adjust municipal court receivable, allowance, and deferred revenue
01-00-1330 Municipal Court Receivable 24,891
01-00-2593 Deferred Revenue - Court 51,725
01-00-1101 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Court 76,616
76,616 76,616
(3) To record amortization of bond issuance costs, deferred loss, and bond
issuance premiums
20-00-2335 Bond Issuance Premium 139,788
20-00-1095 Accumulated Amortization 32,060
20-00-2601 Deferred Loss on Bond Ref 99,741
20-04-5905 Amortization Expense 7,987
139,788 139,788
(4) To adjust accrued interest on long-term debt
20-00-2220 Accrued Interest Payable 493,583
20-04-5600 Interest Expense 208,954
20-00-3100 Fund Balance Unassigned 702,537
702,537 702,537
(5) To adjust property tax receivable, allowance, and deferred revenue per
confirmations
01-00-1100 Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes 952
01-00-1133 Deferred Taxes 25,723
80-00-1100 Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes 4,926
80-00-1133 Deferred Taxes 21,251
01-00-1500 Tax Receivable - Delinquent 26,676
80-00-1500 Tax Receivable - Delinquent 26,176
52,852 52,852
(6) To adjust net pension obligation
05-01-5188 TMRS 4,581
20-01-5188 TMRS 7,099
05-00-2556 Net Pension Obligation 4,581
20-00-2556 Net Pension Obligation 7,099
11,680 11,680
(7) To adjust capital lease expense
01-41-5405 Automobiles 75,147
01-50-5465 Minor Equipment 26,440
01-41-7000 Vehicles 75,147
01-50-7305 Capital Lease - Fire Vehicles 26,440
101,587 101,587




City of Leander

Schedule of Corrected Misstatements

September 30, 2013

Account No. Account Description Debit Credit
(8) To post a prior period adjustment to accrue two years of interest expense
on BCRWWS note payable
20-00-3100 Fund Balance Unassigned 657,720
20-00-1903 BCRWWS Joint Venture 657,720
657,720 657,720
(9) To properly record net investment in BCRUA joint venture and remove
related assets/debt from City's books
20-00-1900 BCRUA Joint Venture 2,191,038
20-00-2914 Bond Payable BCRUA 90,680,000
20-04-9006 Transfer to BCRUA Debt Service 500,000
20-04-9006 Transfer to BCRUA Debt Service 806,917
20-00-1900 BCRUA Joint Venture 91,180,000
20-00-3100 Fund Balance Unassigned 2,997,955
94,177,955 94,177,955




City of Leander, Texas
Schedule of Uncorrected Misstatements

September 30, 2013
Account No. Account Description Debit Credit
(1) To book rebate of sales tax in correct fiscal year
01-00-3100 Fund Balance Unassigned 54,230
01-53-5747 Gateway Shopping Center Rebate 7,632
01-00-2112 Accounts Payable Adjustment 61,862
61,862 61,862
(2) To record accrued interest on CDs
01-00-1110 Claim on Pooled Cash - General 18,287
20-00-1110 Claim on Pooled Cash - Utilities 11,062
01-00-4449 Interest Income 18,287
20-00-4449 Interest Income 11,062
29,349 29,349







 CONSENT AGENDA: ACTION

8. Approval of the minutes: January 16, 2014
9. Consider Liberty Fest Site Use Permit Agreement with Austin Community College

10. Consider Acceptance of Subdivision Infrastructure Improvements for The Bluffs at Crystal Falls:

Section 2 - Phase 2B
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Dishongh to approve. Second by Council Member Garcia.

Motion passes, all voting “aye”

__ PUBLIC HEARING: ACTION

11. a. Public Hearing on Subdivision Variance #13-VA-005: a request for a Variance to Article Ill,
Section 42(e) of the Subdivision Ordinance regarding sidewalk requirements for the property
located at 23216 A Nameless Road, Travis County, Texas
Applicant: Eric Scheibe on behalf of Darrell T & Jo L. Leslie, Phillip & Cindy Jackson and Bill Doan
Robin Griffin, Senior Planner explained

No speakers

b. Action on Subdivision Variance #13-VA-005: request for a variance to Article lll, Section 42(e),
of the Subdivision Ordinance

Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Dishongh to approve the variance based on the Findings of
Fact. Second by Council Member Garcia

An individual vote was taken:

Mayor Fielder — in favor of approval

Council Member Navarrette — in favor of approval
Council Member Lynch - in favor of approval
Council Member Garcia — in favor of approval
Council Member Abruzzese — in favor of approval
Mayor Pro Tem Dishongh — in favor of approval
Council Member Siebold — in favor of approval

Motion passes with all Council Members voting in favor of the variance.

12. a. Public Hearing on Ordinance Case #13-OR-005: amending sections of Article 14.200, the
Composite Zoning Ordinance, to change the title of the LI, Light Industrial use component to HC,
Heavy Commercial, to add screening provisions for outdoor commercial fueling, and to modify the
LI, Light Industrial (proposed HC, Heavy Commercial) and HI, Heavy Industrial Use Components
Robin Griffin, Senior Planner explained

No speakers

b. Action on Ordinance Case # 13-OR-005: amendments to sections of Article 14.200, the
Composite Zoning Ordinance, to change the title of the LI, Light Industrial use component to HC,
Heavy Commercial, to add screening provisions for outdoor commercial fueling, and to modify the
LI, Light Industrial (proposed HC, Heavy Commercial) and HI, Heavy Industrial Use Components

Motion made by Council Member Navarrette to approve. Second by Council Member
Siebold. Motion passes, all voting “aye”

Council Member Lynch suggested that the Light Industrial Zoning Component not be
eliminated







18.

19.

20.

21.

Consider an Ordinance setting Speed Limits for Journey Parkway (Formerly CR179)
Wayne Watts, City Engineer explained

Motion made by Council Member Siebold to approve. Second by Mayor Pro Tem Dishongh.
Motion passes, all voting “aye”

Consider Change Order for Leander “T" Retention Pond #1
Wayne Watts, City Engineer explained

Motion made by Counci! Member Siebold to approve. Second by Council Member Lynch.
Motion passes, all voting “aye”

Consider change in recycling services, rates and extension of Solid Waste Contract with Clawson
Disposal
Kent Cagle, City Manager explained

Motion made by Council Member Lynch to approve. Second by Mayor Pro Tem Dishongh.
Motion passes, all voting “aye”

Consider appointment to the Veterans Park Committee
Mayor Fielder explained

Motion made by Mayor Fielder to appoint Louisa Jones to the Veterans Park Committee.
Second by Council Member Navarrette. Motion passes, all voting “aye”

22.

23.

24.

25.

~ EXECUTIVE SESSION |

Convene into executive session pursuant to Section 551.071, Texas Government Code and Section
1.05, Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding the
City’s water and sewer service area and Chisholm Trail SUD’s application to sell facilities and transfer
CCN No. 11590 to the City of Georgetown

Council convened into executive session at 8:25 pm
Council reconvened into open session at 8:52 pm

Reconvene into open session to take action regarding the City’s water and sewer service area and -
Chisholm Trail SUD’s application to sell facilities and transfer CCN No. 11590 to the City of
Georgetown

Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Dishongh to authorize, confirm and confirm and ratify and
approve filing of protest and participating in protested proceedings on STM applicant.
Second by Council Member Navarrette. Motion passes, all voting “aye”

Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Dishongh to authorize City Attorney and Special Counsel to
seek decertification of areas in city limits and Chisholm CCN under Section 13.255, Water
Code. Second by Council Member Navarrette. Motion passes, all voting “aye”

Authorize filing an application with the TCEQ amending the City’s water and sewer CCN

Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Dishongh to approve the time deemed by legal counsel for
filing an application with the TCEQ amending the City’s water and sewer CCN. Second by
Council Member Navarrette. Motion passes, all voting “aye”

Consider Memorandum of Agreement with Barkley Wedemeyer
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Dishongh to approve. Second by Council Member Garcia.
Motion passes, all voting “aye”




26. Consider Agreement for legal services related to utility service area matters
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Dishongh to approve the legal agreement with Mathews and
Freeland. Second by Council Member Navarette. Motion passes, all voting “aye”

27. Council Members Closing Statements
Council Members gave their closing statements

28. Adjournment
With there being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:55 pm

Attest:

Christopher Fielder, Mayor Debbie Haile, TRMC City Secretary



















ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS AMENDING
SECTIONS OF ARTICLE 14200, THE COMPOSITE ZONING
ORDINANCE, TO REMOVE SEXUALLY ORIENTED BUSINESSES AS
AN AUTHORIZED LAND USE WITHIN THE LI (LIGHT INDUSTRIAL)
USE COMPONENT; ADDING SCREENING REQUIREMENTS FOR
OUTDOOR COMMERCIAL FUELING; CHANGING THE NAME OF
THE LI (LIGHT INDUSTRIAL) USE COMPONENT TO HC (HEAVY
COMMERCIAL); PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE,
PROVIDING SAVINGS, EFFECTIVE DATE AND OPEN MEETINGS
CLAUSES, AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.

Whereas, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed
amendments to Article 14.200, Leander Code of Ordinances (the “Composite Zoning Ordinance”),
and forwarded its recommendation on the amendments to the City Council; and

Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has considered the proposed amendments and
finds that the amendments are reasonable and necessary to protect the health, safety, and welfare of
the present and future residents of the City;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT:

Section 1. Findings of Fact. The above and foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and
correct and are incorporated herein as findings of fact.

Section 2. Renaming the LI Light Industrial Use Component to HC Heavy Commercial.
The LI Light Industrial use component is hereby renamed to HC Heavy Commercial. The
Composite Zoning Ordinance and the City’s official zoning map shall be amended so that the term
“HC Heavy Commercial” shall replace the term “LI Light Industrial”, and the term “Heavy
Commercial” shall replace “Light Industrial” wherever such terms appears in the Ordinance and on
the map. The City Council authorizes and directs the Director of Development Services to revise
the City’s official zoning map as prescribed by this ordinance.

Section 3. Amendment of Article ITI, Sectionl4 (b). Article III, Sectionl4 (b)(15) of the
Composite Zoning Ordinance are hereby amended by removing “Sexually oriented businesses as
permitted by City regulations (required to be set back at least four hundred (400) feet from a
tollway, highway, or major arterial roadway * (which is set forth in subsection 13) as an authorized
use within the Light Industrial use component. Subsections 14 through 21 shall be renumbered as
the number immediately preceding the subsection. For example, subsection 14 shall be renumbered
as subsection 13.

Section 4. Amendment of Article ITI, Sectionl5 (b)(5). Article III, Sections15 (b)(5) of the
Composite Zoning Ordinance are hereby amended in its entirety as follows:




(3) Sexually oriented businesses as permitted by City regulations [required to be set back at
least four hundred (400) feet from a tollway, highway or major arterial roadway]

Section 5. Addition of Subsections 14(b)(6) to Article III. Article III, Section 14(b) of the
Composite Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by adding subsection (6) to read as follows:

(6) Other similar uses as determined by the Director of Planning based on the criteria of Article II,
Sec. 2, ()

Section 6. Addition _of Subsection 1(d)(vii)to Article VI. Article VI, Section 1(d)of the
Composite Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by adding subsection (vii) to read as follows:

(vii) Fuel pumps are required to be screened from view of any street or public right-of-way
to at least the height of the fuel pump.

Section 7. Conflicting Ordinances. Exhibit “A”, Article 14.200, Leander Code of Ordinances
and of Ordinance No. 05-018-00 is amended as provided herein. All ordinances or parts thereof
conflicting or inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance as adopted herein, are hereby
amended to the extent of such conflict. In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between this
ordinance and any other code or ordinance of the City, the terms and provisions of this ordinance
shall govern.

Section 8. Savings Clause. All rights and remedies of the City of Leander are expressly saved
as to any and all violations of the provisions of any ordinances affecting zoning within the City
which have accrued at the time of the effective date of this ordinance; and, as to such accrued
violations and all pending litigation, both civil and criminal, whether pending in court or not, under
such ordinances, same shall not be affected by this ordinance but may be prosecuted until final
disposition by the courts.

Section 9. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its
passage and publication in accordance with the provisions of the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code and the City
Charter.Section 6 of this ordinance shall apply to properties for which a site development permit
application or building permit application is submitted to the City after the effective date of this
ordinance. Properties for which a site development permit application or building permit
application was filed on or before the effective date of this ordinance shall comply with the version
of Section 1(d), Article VI of the Composite Zoning Ordinance in effect immediately preceding this
amendment.

Section 10.  Severability. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are severable and, if any
phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance should be declared invalid by the final
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of the
remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance, since the same
would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation of this ordinance of any
such invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. If any provision of this Ordinance shall

R




be adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other
provisions or applications of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision,
and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable.

Section 11.  Open Meetings. It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time,
place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act.

PASSED AND APPROVED on the 6" day of February, 2014,

PASSED AND FINALLY APPROVED on the 20" day of February, 2014.

THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST:

Christopher Fielder, Mayor Debbie Haile, City Secretary






















Attachment # 1

(1) The Type B architectural component is intended to be utilized for the majority of residential
development except that which is intended as a Type A architectural component.

(2) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide
for harmonious land use transitions.

(3) This component may be utilized to raise the building standards and help ensure compatibility for
non-residential uses adjacent to property that is more restricted.

(4) This component is intended for the majority of the LO and LC use components except those
meeting the intent of the Type A or C architectural components.

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS:

The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case:
* Provide Opportunities for coordinated, well-planned growth and development that are
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.
= Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall

quality of life and economic viability.

= Plan for future development that is compatible with existing residential neighborhoods.

=  Provide for a variety of sustainable housing options for all age groups and economic
levels. Determine ways to successfully integrate this variety within neighborhoods so as
to accommodate the different needs of families throughout their life cycle. Create more
desirable and livable neighborhoods while respecting the goal of maintaining stable real
estate values and housing marketability.

The subject property is currently zoned MF-2-A (Multi-Family) district, Interim SFR-1-B
(Single Family Rural) district, Interim SFS-2-B (Single Family Suburban) district, and GC-3-A
(General Commercial) district. The properties to the north are zoned MF-2-A (Multi-Family)
district, SFU-2-B (Single Family Suburban) district, and GC-3-A (General Commercial) district
and are currently undeveloped. The properties to the east include undeveloped GC-3-A (General
Commercial) zoning, and interim SFR-1-B (Single Family Rural) and interim SFS-2-B (Single
Family Suburban) districts on the east side of Hwy 183A. The properties to the south include
developed SFU-2-B (Single Family Urban) district known as the Oak Ridge subdivision, SFC-2-
B (Single Family Compact) district containing the Crystal Crossings Phase 3 subdivision that is
currently under construction, an interim SFS-2-B (Single Family Suburban) district which
contains an existing residential structure and undeveloped GC-3-A (General Commercial)
district. The properties located to the west include undeveloped SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban)
district which is also owned by Leander Developers 4 and will ultimately be incorporated into
the development, a developed residentially zoned property of SFE-2-B (Single Family Estates)
district known as the Overlook Estates subdivision, and property zoned SFU-2-B (Single Family
Urban) district known as the Oakridge Section 2 subdivision.







Attachment # 1

exposure to any future single family residential communities from the Multi-Family
development to the west of this property.

This proposed zoning request meets the comprehensive plan statements in that it is allowing for
the opportunity of coordinated growth in this area of the City, and is enhancing the compatibility
with the adjacent residentially zoned tracts. The proposed zoning request would have minimal
conflict with the existing zoned districts and meets the intent statements of the composite zoning
ordinance.

















































Appendix A
Data Reported Electronically to the state







(C) whether the peace officer knew the race or ethnicity of the individual detained before
detaining that individual; and

(7) require the chief administrator of the agency, regardless of whether the administrator is elected,
employed, or appointed, to submit an annual report of the information collected under Subdivision

(6) to:

(A) The Commission on Law Enforcement; and

(B) the governing body of each county or municipality served by the agency, if the agency is an
agency of a county, municipality, or other political subdivision of the state.

I certify these policies are in effect.

Executed by: GREG MINTON
Chief Administrator

LEANDER POLICE DEPT.

Date; 02/12/2014

Page 2 of 3 pages submitted electronically to the

The Texas Commission on Law Enforcement




LEANDER POLICE DEPT. Motor Vehicle Racial Profiling Information

Number of motor vehicle stops:
1. 8489 citation only

2. 0 arrest only
3. 242 both

4. 8731 Total (4, 11, 14 and 17 must be equal)
Race or Ethnicity:

S5 439 African
6. 106 Asian
7. 6458 Caucasian
8. 1652 Hispanic
9 32 Middle Eastern
10. 44 Native American
11. 8731 Total (lines 4, 11, 14 and 17 must be equal)

Race or Ethnicity known prior to stop?
12. 686 Yes
13. 8045 No
14. 8731 Total (lines 4, 11, 14 and 17 must be equal)

Search conducted?
15. 383 Yes
16. 8348 No
17. 8731 Total (lines 4, 11, 14 and 17 must be equal)

Was search consented?
18.220 Yes
19.163 No
20. 383 Total (must equal line 15)

Page 3 of 3 pages submitted electronically to the

The Texas Commission on Law Enforcement
















IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Principal and Surety have signed and sealed this

instrument this __ 8th  day of January ,20 14 .
Chasco Constructors Liberty Mutual Insurance Company
Principal Surety ,
By: /\ (\ A =V /\/\ By:

(VAR O 14
Tifle: PSS\ DE T Title: Robert James Nitsche, Attorney-In-Fact
Address: 2801 E. Old Settlers Blvd Address: 13201 NW Frwy, Ste 600

Round Rock, TX 78665 Houston, TX 77040

The name and address of the Resident Agent of Surety is:

Insurance Network of Texas

143 E. Austin, Giddings, TX 78942

(Seal)

Page 3 of 3
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FINAL BILLS PAID AFFIDAVIT
AND WAIVER OF LIEN

STATE OF TEXAS !
COUNTY OF !

Date: o\ _/’z,/l /l‘-{
Owner: e Ve otz O TELKZ

Contractor/Material
Provider ("Affiant"): . Hh&co comSNOCTORS | WT D, L. ®.

Project ! TeAiLs o SWAo Y o pv—
(goph® TAA)

This is to acknowledge and certify that Affiant has completed the construction of all
improvements for the project noted above and that they have been paid in full for all labor and
material provided to the above-noted construction project, and acknowledge and certify that
Affiant, and all of his or its agents, employees, successors, assigns, subsidiaries, and legal
representatives will and do release and waive all Mechanic's liens, or similar lien rights, which
have or might arise as a result of the Affiant's or Affiant's agents' or employees' providing labor
and materials to the above-noted project pursuant to the Contract,

In addition to the foregoing, Affiant acknowledges and certifies that Affiant has paid all

laborers, subcontractors, matetialmen, and all other persons or parties who have provided labor
or materials through, for, or on behalf of the Affiant to the above-noted construction project.

Affiant indemnifies and holds Owner harmless from any liens, debts or obligations which
arise as a result of labor or materials provided by or through Affiant to the project through the
date set out above. Affiant further indemnifies and holds harmless all real property on which the
improvements were constructed and all interests in such property, including leasehold interests,
from any liens, debts, or obligations arising from any labor or materials provided by or through
Affiant to the project through the date set out above.

TS
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BY Affiant on this 27 day of pn_, 20! Y,

AFFIANT: '
Signature: //WJ‘ (| { (/v 4\‘
Typed Name: {l /{/Wug\ LP A /ayL M
Title: | Reatdt

Initialed: PAGE 1of 2




STATE OF TEXAS '

1

COUNTY OF WLy L Son

—

BEFORE ME the undersigned authority on this day personally appeared LUHRLES 3. Giieg S @
known to me to be the person noted above, and acknowledged to me the following: that he/she
executed the foregoing for the purpose and consideration therein expressed, in the capacity
therein stated, and as the duly authorized act and deed of the party releasing and waiving the lien
therein; and that every statement therein is within his/her knowledge and is true and correct.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE, this 2 \_day of |, 204

[SEAL]

Initialed:

Ol A —

M?ﬁb in and for the State of Texas

Name: PV}/(\\ e\&ﬂ/{?\

My commission

expires:

2o\ 1]

RCIA
of Texas

ShE, PRIL LYDIA GA
\‘w%ﬁf‘?"- Not'f\ry public, Stats 01
i g My Commission Expires
i March 19, 2017
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13 - EQUIPMENT FUND

REVENUES 2,023 2,023

EXPENDITURES 23,880 23,880
14 - VEHICLE FUND

REVENUES 555,100 70,600 625,700

EXPENDITURES 770,220 40,455 810,675
20 - UTILITY FUND

REVENUES 17,216,645 17,216,645

EXPENDITURES 20,166,645 20,166,645
21 - UTILITY VEHICLE FUND

REVENUES 21,120 21,120

EXPENDITURES 50,000 50,000
25 - WATER IMPACT

REVENUES 1,489,500 1,489,500

EXPENDITURES 1,345,321 509,604 1,854,925
26 - WASTEWATER IMPACT

REVENUES 859,500 859,500

EXPENDITURES 250,000 18,000 268,000
27 - WATER CIP FUND

REVENUES 0 0

EXPENDITURES 0 530,000 530,000
28 - SERIES 2007 9.2M CO'S

REVENUES 0 0

EXPENDITURES 0 0
40 - GF CAPITAL PJTS

REVENUES 1,649,946 648,149 2,298,095

EXPENDITURES 1,544,750 1,069,745 2,614,495
41 - GF CIP PARK GRANTS

REVENUES 70,000 70,000

EXPENDITURES 70,000 70,000
52 - GF 21M BOND 2007

REVENUES 0 0

EXPENDITURES 0 0
53 - $6.3M BOND 2010

REVENUES 0 0

EXPENDITURES 1,160,000 872,520 2,032,520







96 - LEANDER DEVELOPMENT

AUTHORITY
REVENUES 11,000 11,000
EXPENDITURES 11,000 11,000

Section 3. Exhibit A. The individual line items affected by the budget amendment are hereby
attached as Exhibit A.

Section 4 Open Meetings. It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which
this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and
purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, Tex. Gov't Code.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this 20th day of February, 2014.

ATTEST: CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS

Debbie Haile, City Secretary Christopher Fielder, Mayor










28 - SERIES 2007 9.2M CO’S

REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

40 - GF CAPITAL PJTS

REVENUES
40-00-4900 Transfer In East Crystal Falls Roadway 2B 343,925.00
40-00-4800 Transfer in 183/183A right-of-way 130,000.00
40-00-4800 Transfer In Leander T Retention Pond #1 82,420.00
40-00-4800 Transfer In Lakeline Extension lighting 35,000.00
40-00-4900 Transfer In budget correction 56,804.00

EXPENDITURES
40-02-8335 Leander T Leander T Retention Pond #1 82,420.00
40-02-8335 Leander T Mel Mathis Construction 220,000.00
40-04-7400 183 right-of-way 183/183A right-of-way 130,000.00
40-04-8005 Lakeline Extension Lakeline Extension lighting 35,000.00
40-04-8028 Bagdad Bagdad @ Kettering - Cedar Park ILA 40,000.00
40-04-8342 E. Crystal Falls East Crystal Falls Roadway Award Bid 343,925.00
40-04-8385 Old 2243 Old 2243 Engineering (carryover fy13) 56,400.00
40-04-8028 Bagdad Bagdad Final Design 162,000.00
41 - GF CIP PARK GRANTS

REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
52 - GF 21M BOND 2007

REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
53 - $6.3M BOND 2010

REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
53-01-8327 County Glen Roadway Construction (carryover fy13) 102,520
53-01-8335 Leander T Construction (carryover fy13) 770,000










3. Assignor Retained Land. Assignor, by its execution of this Assignment, hereby:
(a) agrees to complete the development of any property affected by the Agreement and not
included within the Transferred Property (the “Assignor Retained Land”) in compliance with the
requirements of the Agreement; and (b) agrees to complete the development of the Assignor
Retained Land in compliance with the Applicable Regulations.

4, Mutual Indemnity. Assignor hereby agrees to indemnify, defend and hold
Assignee harmless for, from and against any and all obligations, responsibilities, duties,
liabilities, damages, costs and expenses (including, without limitation, intended and by way of
example only, reasonable attorneys’ fees, disbursements and amounts paid in settlement of
claims) which are the obligation of the “Developer” under the Agreement and/or which arise out
of the failure of the Assignor or its predecessors- in-interest to fulfill their respective obligations
under the Agreement, and which have accrued or been incurred prior to the date of this
Assignment, arise from Assignor's obligations related to Assignor Retained Obligations or arise
from Assignor's obligations related to Assignor Retained Land. Assignee hereby agrees to
indemnify, defend and hold Assignor harmless for, from and against any and all obligations,
responsibilities, duties, liabilities, damages, costs and expenses (including, without limitation,
intended and by way of example only, reasonable attorneys’ fees, disbursements and amounts
paid in settlement of claims) which arise out of the failure of the Assignee or its successors-in-
interest to fulfill their respective obligations under the Agreement assumed pursuant to this
Assignment, and which have accrued or been incurred on or after the date of this Assignment.

5. Entire Agreement. This Assignment constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings, if
any, concerning the subject matter hereof.

0. Binding Effect. All of the terms, provisions, covenants and conditions set forth
herein shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their
respective successors and assigns.

7. Headings. The headings and captions in this Assignment are for convenience
only, and shall not control or affect the meaning or construction of any provision of this
Assignment.

8. Counterparts; Facsimile Signatures. Facsimile signatures appearing hereon shall
be deemed an original, and this Assignment may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original and all of which together shall be a complete executed
document for all purposes.

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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ASSIGNOR:

LAND BUDDIES, LLC,
a Texas limited liability company

By:
Lee Nicol, Manager
Date:
STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF TARRANT g
This instrument was acknowledged before me onthe  day of , 2014,

by, Lee Nicol as Manager of Land Buddies, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, on behalf of
said limited liability company.

NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Texas

(SEAL)
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ASSIGNEE:

CENTURY LAND HOLDINGS I, LLC,
a Colorado limited liability company,
d/b/a CENTURY LH II, LLC

By:  Century Land Holdings, LLC,
a Colorado limited liability company,
its sole managing member

By:
Steve Hayes, Division President
Date:
STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF TRAVIS §
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of , 2014,

by Steve Hayes, Division President, Century Land Holdings, LLC, a Colorado limited liability
company, sole managing member of Century Land Holdings II, LLC, a Colorado limited liability
company, on behalf of said limited liability companies.

NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Texas

(SEAL)

{W0606281.1} 4
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CONSENT:

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS,
a Texas home-rule municipal corporation

By:
Christopher Fielder, Mayor
Date:
ATTEST:
By:
Debbie Haile, City Secretary
STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON §
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of , 2014,

by Christopher Fielder, as Mayor of the City of Leander, Texas, a Texas municipal corporation,
on behalf of said corporation.

NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Texas

(SEAL)

{W0606281.1) 5
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ASSIGNOR:

LAND BUDDIES, LLC,
a Texas limited liability company

By:
Lee Nicol, Manager
Date:
STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF TARRANT g
This instrument was acknowledged before me onthe  day of , 2014,

by, Lee Nicol as Manager of Land Buddies, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, on behalf of
said limited liability company.

NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Texas

(SEAL)

{W0606281.1} 3
AUSTIN 1/733278v.2
56118-17 02/12/2014




ASSIGNEE:

CENTURY LAND HOLDINGS I, LLC,
a Colorado limited liability company,
d/b/a CENTURY LH 1L, LLC

By:  Century Land Holdings, LLC,

a Colorado limited liability company,
its sole managing member

By:

Steve Hayes, Division President

Date:

STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF TRAVIS §
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of , 2014,
by Steve Hayes, Division President, Century Land Holdings, LLC, a Colorado limited liability

company, sole managing member of Century Land Holdings II, LLC, a Colorado limited liability
company, on behalf of said limited liability companies.

NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Texas

(SEAL)
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RESOLUTION NO. 14-003-00

ARESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, ACCEPTING THE
PETITIONS FOR ANNEXATION OF TWO PARCELS OF LAND BEING
145.26 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, AND 52.290 ACRES, MORE OR LESS,
LOCATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS; SETTING AN
ANNEXATION SCHEDULE; PROVIDING FOR OPEN MEETINGS AND
OTHER RELATED MATTERS.

WHEREAS, the owner of certain properties located within Williamson County, Texas, has
petitioned the City of Leander, Texas, (herein the “City”), a home-rule City, for annexation of said
properties, more particularly described herein (the “subject property”), into the City limits;

WHEREAS, the subject property is contiguous and adjacent to the corporate limits of the City
and the owners have made application for annexation;

WHEREAS, after review and consideration of such petition for annexation, the City Council
finds that the property is exempt from the City’s annexation plan pursuant to § 43.052 (h)(2) of the
Local Government Code; and,

WHEREAS, the petitioner has agreed and consented to the annexation of the subject property
by the City and further agreed to be bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in
force and effect within the corporate limits of the City and all those which may be hereafter adopted;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT:

Sectionl. Findings. The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are
hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact.

Section 2. Proceedings. The petitions for annexation of the following properties, including the
abutting streets, roadways, and rights of way,not previously annexed into the Cityand the draft services
plan shown in Exhibit “B”, submitted by Petitioner, are hereby accepted:

(1)  All that certain tract or parcel of land being 145.26 acres, more or less, located
in Williamson County, Texas, and being more particularly described in the
Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes.

(2) All that certain tract or parcel of land being 52.290 acres, more or less, located
in Williamson County, Texas, and being more particularly described in the

Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes.

Two public hearings are set for the dates of February 20, 2014 and March 6, 2014. Notice of such




hearings shall be posted and the hearings shall be open to the public to accept public comment on the
annexation request.

Section 3. Severability. Should any section or part of this Resolution be held
unconstitutional, illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance thereof
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof;
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect and
to this end the provisions of this Resolution are declared to be severable.

Section 4. Open Meetings. It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at
which this Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time,
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551,
Tex. Gov't.Code.

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 16th day of January, 2014.

ATTEST: THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS

Debbie Haile, City Secretary Christopher Fielder, Mayor




Exhibit “B”

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN
FOR PROPERTY TO BE
ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER

WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) intends to institute annexation
proceedings for the tract(s) and parcel(s) of land described more fully hereinafter (the “subject

property”);

WHEREAS, the owner of the subject property (the “Owner”) has requested annexation of the
subject property and Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the
annexation ordinance;

WHEREAS, the subject property is not included in the municipal annexation plan and is
exempt from the requirements thereof;

WHEREAS, infrastructure shall be provided for the subject property pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the “Development and Annexation Agreement (Kittie Hill Property)” (the “Development
Agreement”); provided that, except for municipal service provided for in the Development Agreement,
municipal services shall be provided on the same terms and conditions as such services are provided to
other similarly situated properties currently within the City; and

WHEREAS, it is found that all requirements have been satisfied and the City is authorized by
the City Charter and Ch. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject property into the City;

NOW, THEREFORE, the City agrees to provide the following services for the subject
property on the effective date of annexation:

(1) General Municipal Services. Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Plan, the
following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation:

A. Police protection as follows: Routine patrols of accessible areas, radio response to calls
for police service and all other police services now being offered to the citizens of the City.

B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: Fire protection by the
present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and the volunteer fire fighting
force with the limitations of water available. Radio response for Emergency Medical Services
will be provided with the present personnel and equipment.

C. Solid waste collection services as follows: Solid waste collection and services as now
being offered to the citizens of the City.




D. Animal control as follows: Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities, or
by contract with a third party, as provided within the City.

E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City.

F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code
enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities.

G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service.

H. Land use regulation as follows: On the effective date of annexation, the zoning
jurisdiction of the City shall be extended to include the subject property, and, until the zoning
of the subject property is established by ordinance after annexation, the ETJ Property, as such
term is defined in the Development Agreement, shall be temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B”;
provided that the ETJ Property shall be entitled to be developed with the land uses as more
specifically provided in the Development Agreement. Itis the City’s intent to zone the subject
property at the Owner’s request in a manner that is not inconsistent with such uses, as provided
in the Development Agreement. The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council
will consider the applicant’s request to process a zoning application and zone the subject
property for such use and development following final annexation of the subject property.

L Library service: Service by present personnel, equipment, and facilities within the
City.
J. Storm Water Management: Owner will provide storm water system at its own expense,

which will be inspected by City Engineers at the time of completion. The City will then
maintain the storm water system upon acceptance of the system by the City.

2 Scheduled Municipal Services. Due to the size and vacancy of the subject property, the
plans and schedule for the development of the subject property, the following municipal services will
be provided on a schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan:

A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows:
(1) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas.

(i)  The City intends to provide water services to the subject property pursuant to the
Development Agreement, and the terms of the Development Agreement applicable to water
service are incorporated herein by reference. Save and except as provided in the Development
Agreement, the City will provide water service in accordance with the applicable ordinances,
rules, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the extension of water
service. The Owner shall construct the internal water lines and pay the costs of line extension
and construction of such facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject property as




required in City ordinances. Upon acceptance of the water lines within the subject property and
any off-site improvements required by the Development Agreement, water service will be
provided by the City utility department on the same terms, conditions and requirements as are
applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of the City; subject to all the ordinances,
regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time. The water system will be
accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual acceptance and maintenance
policies. New water line extensions will be installed and extended upon request under the same
costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the City. The ordinances of the
City in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the costs and request for
service. In the event of a conflict between this Municipal Services Plan and the Development
Agreement for the subject property, the terms and provisions of the Development Agreement
shall govern and control.

B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater facilities as follows:
1) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas.

(i)  The City intends to provide wastewater services to the subject property pursuant to the
Development Agreement, and the terms of the Development Agreement applicable to
wastewater service are incorporated herein by reference. Save and except as provided in the
Development Agreement, the City will provide wastewater service in accordance with the
applicable rules and regulations for the provision of wastewater service in accordance with all
the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the extension
of wastewater service. The Owner shall construct the internal wastewater lines and pay the
costs of line extension and construction of facilities necessary to provide wastewater service to
the subject property as required in City ordinances. Upon acceptance of the wastewater lines
within the subject property and any off-site improvements required by the Development
Agreement, wastewater service will be provided by the City utility department on the same
terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and customers
of the City, subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect from time
to time. The wastewater system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance
with its usual policies. Requests for new wastewater line extensions will be installed and
extended upon request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated
customers of the City. The ordinances in effect at the time a request for service is submitted
shall govern the costs and request for service.In the event of a conflict between this Municipal
Services Plan and the Development Agreement for the subject property, the terms and
provisions of the Development Agreement shall govern and control.

C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows:
@) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject property

and other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City. The
maintenance of the existing streets and roads will be limited as follows:




(A)  Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures
necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and

(B)  Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City.

(i)  The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and
following installation, dedication and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by
city ordinance, including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other
traffic control devices and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed
public streets, roadways and rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property,
subject to and except as provided within the terms, conditions and requirements of the
Development Agreement, as follows:

(A)  As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above;

(B)  Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities,
construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the need
therefore is determined by the governing body under City policies;

(C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings
and other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate
study and traffic standards; and

(D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established
policies of the City;

(iii) The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways. The Owner
agrees that no improvements are required by the City on such roadways to service the subject
property; provided that improvements may be required by the Owner under the City Rules, as
such term is defined in the Development Agreement.

(3) Capital Improvements.Construction of the following capital improvements shall be initiated
by the City after the effective date of the annexation: None. Upon development of the subject property,
save and except as provided in the Development Agreement, the Owner will be responsible for the
development costs the same as a developer in a similarly situated area. Capital Improvements shall be
designed, constructed and installed by the Owner as provided in the Development Agreement.

(4) Term. If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years.

(5) Property Description.The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in exhibits
attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service Plan is attached.




SCHEDULE FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATIONS
KITTIE HILL / PALMERA RIDGE +/- 145.26 & 52.290 ACRES

DATE

ACTION/EVENT

LEGAL AUTHORITY

January 16, 2014

COUNCIL BY WRITTEN RESOLUTION Directs
notification to land owners; and sets two (2) Public
Hearings February 20, 2014 and March 6, 2014;
Council directs development of service plan for area to be
annexed.

Loc. Gov’t Code, §§ 43.063 & 43.065;
Public Hearings: are on or after the 40th day
but before 20th day before institution of
proceedings.

By January 20, 2014

NOTICE TO property owners & utility providers

Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.062(a)

February §, 2014**
Publish notice of First
Public Hearing

February 19, 2014%*
Publish  notice  of
Second Public
Hearings

NEWSPAPER NOTICES RE: FIRST AND SECOND
PUBLIC HEARINGS; (If applicable, certified Notice to
Railroad). POST NOTICE OF HEARINGS ON CITY’S
WEBSITE AND MAINTAIN UNTIL HEARINGS
COMPLETE;

SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTICE (notify each school
district of possible impact w/in the period prescribed for
publishing the notice of the First Public Hearing.)

Not less than 10 days nor more than 20 days
before 1st and 2nd public hearings. Loc.
Gov’t Code, §43.063 (c).

Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.905; send school
district notice not less than 10 days nor more
than 20 days before the First Public Hearing.

Ten days after the date
the first notice of
Public  Hearing is

LAST DAY FOR SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN
PROTEST BY RESIDENTS (10 days after first
newspaper notice)

Site hearing required if 10% of adult
residents of tracts protest within 10 days after
Ist newspaper notice. Loc. Gov’t Code, §

published 43.063 (b)

February 20, 2014* 1st PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE | Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days
PLAN (Not more than 40 days before the 1st reading of | before reading of ordinance. Loc. Gov’t
ordinance) REGULAR MEETING Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065.

March 6,2014* 2nd PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE | Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days
PLAN (At least 20 days before 1st reading of ordinance.) | before reading of ordinance. Loc. Gov’t
REGULAR MEETING Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065.

Institution Date FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE Date of institution of proceedings. Not less

March 27, 2014* SPECIAL CALLED MEETING than 20 days from the second public hearing

nor more than 40 days from the first public
hearing.

April 3, 2014,
Or at a special called

SECOND-FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE
REGULAR MEETING

Not more than 90 days after 1% reading of
Ordinance § 43.064.

compatible with mapping format used by registrar

meeting  after  the

March 27"  First

Reading

Within 30 days of | CITY SENDS COPY OF MAP showing boundary | Elec. Code §42.0615
Second Reading changes to County Voter Registrar in a format that is

Within 60 days of
Second Reading

CITY PROVIDES CERTIFIED COPY OF

ORDINANCE AND MAPS TO:
1. County Clerk
2. County Appraisal District
3. County Tax Assessor Collector
4. 911 Addressing
5. Sheriff’s Office
6. City Department Heads
7. State Comptroller

8. Franchise Holders

*Dates in BOLD are MANDATORY dates to follow this schedule. Please advise if deviation.
**Newspaper notices to paper by Sp.m. the preceding Wednesday



















enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this Ordinance of any such
invalid section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase. If any provision of this Ordinance
shall be adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the invalidity shall
not affect other provisions or application for this Ordinance which can be given effect
without the invalid provision, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are
declared to be severable.

Section 8. Open Meetings. It is hereby officially found and determined that the
meeting at which this Ordinance was passed and was open to the public as required, and
that the public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as
required by the Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 551.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the day of February, 2014.

ATTEST The City of Leander, Texas

Debbie Haile, City Secretary Christopher Fielder, Mayor










Attachment # 1

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS

USE COMPONENTS:
PUD - PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT:
The purpose and intent of the Planned Unit Development (PUD) district is to design unified
standards for development in order to facilitate flexible, customized zoning and subdivision
standards which encourage imaginative and innovative designs for the development of
property within the City. The intent of this zoning request is to provide for the design of a
development which permits a multi-family community for seniors. The intent of this zoning
district is to cohesively regulate the development to assure compatibility with adjacent
single-family residences, neighborhoods, and commercial properties within the region.

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS:

The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case:

= Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall
quality of life and economic viability.

» Establish high standards for development.

= Provide for a variety of sustainable housing options for all age groups and economic
levels. Determine ways to successfully integrate this variety within neighborhoods so as
to accommodate the different needs of families throughout their life cycle. Create more
desirable and livable neighborhoods while respecting the goal of maintaining stable real
estate values and housing marketability.

ANALYSIS:

The applicant is proposing a multi-family community for seniors located in close proximity to
commercial development, the rail station and the TOD. The subject property is surrounded on
the north and west side by the existing Senior Village at Leander Station. There is an established
single-family home located to the east and zoned for light industrial uses, and an established
single-family home located to the south.

A PUD district is an appropriate district in this situation because it offers the applicant the
opportunity to design a zoning district that will provide for increased density and allow
flexibility for the design of the complex. The applicant is proposing increased landscaping,
pedestrian friendly sidewalks connecting to the HEB Shopping Center, and increased covered
parking.

The applicant is proposing the MF-2-A (Multi-Family) zoning district as the base district for this
PUD. They are proposing increasing the allowable density from 25 units per acre to 34.14 units
per acre. This increase would allow for 156 units on the property. In addition, they are
proposing to limit the age of the tenants to 55 years and older for 80% of the residents. They are
proposing an alternative parking plan that would permit reduced parking requirements. The plan
would require the applicant to demonstrate how the parking requirements could be met if the
project was no longer age restricted.













Leander 2243 Planned Unit Development — Leander, Texas

General Notes

1. The PUD consists of 4.57 acres on Old 2243 West known as Lot 2 of the Amended Plat of
Lots 1-3, “Block A” Replat of Lots 1-9, “Block A” Leander 2243 Subdivision (the
“Property”). See Exhibit A

2. Except as otherwise noted, the PUD shall be governed by the Composite Zoning
Ordinance of the City of Leander Ordinance No. 05-018-00 (September 2005) as
amended through and including the date of this PUD (the Zoning Ordinance).

Zoning
1. The base zoning for the Property shall be:
a. MF-2-A: Multifamily —4.57 Acres

i. Maximum density shall allow 156 units or 34.14 units per acre.

ii. So long as a minimum of eighty percent (80%) of the units are rented to a
head of household or spouse that is at least fifty five (55) years of age,
the off-street parking requirements shall be reduced by approximately
22% to 1.25 parking spaces for one bedroom plus 0.25 parking spaces for
each additional bedroom. Should the Property no longer be used for a
senior project, the off street parking requirements shall conform to the
Zoning Ordinance requirements. The Owner of the Property shall
construct such needed additional extra parking as shown in the
alternative parking plan to be submitted as part of the site development
permit application. The owner of the Property shall contact the City and
notify the City of the Property’s change of use from a senior project.

iii. In addition to the Zoning Ordinance requirements that thirty five percent
(35%) of the units have at least one enclosed garage parking space, an
additional five percent (5%) of the units shall be required to have at least
one enclosed garage or covered carport parking space.

iv. Garages and carports may encroach into side setback of the Leander
Station property, Lot 1 of the Amended Plat of Lots 1-3, “Block A” Replat
of Lots 1-9, “Block A” Leander 2243 Subdivision, up to five (5) feet.
Landscaped screening along Old 2243 West and the adjacent single family
property to the east shall be 150% of that required by the Zoning
Ordinance.

Sidewalk Construction
1. An offsite eight (8’) foot sidewalk meeting the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance
shall be constructed in the right of way as shown in Exhibit B. The offsite sidewalk shall
be constructed at the same time as the onsite sidewalks are constructed.
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EXHBIT B:
OFFSITE SIDEWALK
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2. 150% of required landscaped screening along FM 2243 and adjacent single family property.

3. Inaddition to thirty five percent (35%) of the units having one enclosed garage parking
space, an additional five percent (5%) of the units shall have at least one enclosed garage or
covered carport parking space.

4. Construction of offsite sidewalk to increase pedestrian safety along FM 2243 between the
site and the HEB commercial center

5. Enhanced density targeting seniors results in increased park fees with a correspondingly
lower impact on parks

6. Enhanced amenities included in the project are outlined in the Leander 2243 PUD

Sincerely,

Blake A. Rue

Managing Member

Leander 2243 Investment, LLC

Ph: 512-294-4017

Email: Blake@Rueinvestments.com
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Amending Ordinance 05-018-00

2. At the time of site plan submittal, the applicant shall provide for driveway connectivity
between the subject site and the properties to the east and west.
3. A minimum of 55% of the required masonry shall be brick or stone and not stucco.

In the event of a conflict between the Composite Zoning Ordinance and the requirements for the
Property set forth in this Ordinance, this Ordinance shall control.

Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by
the City’s zoning ordinance.

Section 6. Severability. Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional,
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thercof
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof;
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable.

Section 7. Open Meetings. That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time,
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551,
Loc. Gov't. Code.

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 6" day of February, 2014.
FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 20" day of February, 2014.

THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST:

Christopher Fielder, Mayor Debbie Haile, City Secretary







EXHIBIT B

Leander 2243 Planned Unit Development — Leander, Texas

General Notes

1. The PUD consists of 4.57 acres on Old 2243 West known as Lot 2 of the Amended Plat of
Lots 1-3, “Block A” Replat of Lots 1-9, “Block A” Leander 2243 Subdivision (the
“Property”). See Exhibit A

2. Except as otherwise noted, the PUD shall be governed by the Composite Zoning
Ordinance of the City of Leander Ordinance No. 05-018-00 (September 2005) as
amended through and including the date of this PUD (the Zoning Ordinance).

Zoning
1. The base zoning for the Property shall be:
a. MF-2-A: Multifamily —4.57 Acres

i. Maximum density shall allow 156 units or 34.14 units per acre.

ii. Solong asa minimum of eighty percent (80%) of the units are rented to a
head of household or spouse that is at least fifty five (55) years of age,
the off-street parking requirements shall be reduced by approximately
22% to 1.25 parking spaces for one bedroom plus 0.25 parking spaces for
each additional bedroom. Should the Property no longer be used for a
senior project, the off street parking requirements shall conform to the
Zoning Ordinance requirements. The Owner of the Property shall
construct such needed additional extra parking as shown in the
alternative parking plan to be submitted as part of the site development
permit application. The owner of the Property shall contact the City and
notify the City of the Property’s change of use from a senior project.

iii. In addition to the Zoning Ordinance requirements that thirty five percent
(35%) of the units have at least one enclosed garage parking space, an
additional five percent (5%) of the units shall be required to have at least
one enclosed garage or covered carport parking space.

iv. Garages and carports may encroach into side setback of the Leander
Station property, Lot 1 of the Amended Plat of Lots 1-3, “Block A” Replat
of Lots 1-9, “Block A” Leander 2243 Subdivision, up to five (5) feet.
Landscaped screening along Old 2243 West and the adjacent single family
property to the east shall be 150% of that required by the Zoning
Ordinance.

Sidewalk Construction
1. An offsite eight (8’) foot sidewalk meeting the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance
shall be constructed in the right of way as shown in Exhibit B. The offsite sidewalk shall
be constructed at the same time as the onsite sidewalks are constructed.
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Section 3. Severability. Should any section or part of this Resolution be held
unconstitutional, illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance thereof
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of
such section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions
thereof; but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force
and effect and to this end the provisions of this Resolution are declared to be severable.

Section 4. Open Meetings. It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting
at which this Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the
time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act,
Chapt. 551, Tex. Gov't. Code.

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 20th day of February, 2014.

ATTEST: THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS

Debbie Haile, City Secretary Christopher Fielder, Mayor




EXHIBIT “A”

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN
FOR PROPERTY TO BE
ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER

WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) intends to institute annexation
proceedings for a tract of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject

property”);

WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the
annexation ordinance;

WHEREAS, the subject property is not included in the municipal annexation plan and is
exempt from the requirements thereof;

WHEREAS, infrastructure provided for herein and that existing are sufficient to service the
subject property on the same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently
within the City limits and no capital improvements are required to offer municipal services on the
same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties within the City; and

WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject property into the City;

NOW, THEREFORE, the following services will be provided for the subject property on
the effective date of annexation:

(1 General Municipal Services. Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Plan, the
following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation:

A. Police protection as follows:

Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police
services now being offered to the citizens of the City.

B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows:

Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and the
volunteer fire fighting force with the limitations of water available. Radio response for
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment.

C. Solid waste collection services as follows:

Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City.
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HEDULE FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION
SPENN TRACT +/- 2.701 ACRES

DATE

ACTION/EVENT

LEGAL AUTHORITY

February 20, 2014

COUNCIL BY WRITTEN RESOLUTION Directs
notification to land owners; and sets two (2) Public
Hearings March 27, 2014 and April 3, 2014; Council
directs development of service plan for area to be annexed.

Loc. Gov't Code, §§ 43.063 & 43.065;
Public Hearings: are on or after the 40th day
but before 20th day before institution of
proceedings.

By February 24, 2014

NOTICE TO property owners & utility providers

Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.062(a)

March 12, 2014%*
Publish notice of First

NEWSPAPER NOTICES RE: FIRST AND SECOND
PUBLIC HEARINGS; (If applicable, certified Notice to

Not less than 10 days nor more than 20 days
before 1st and 2nd public hearings. Loc.

Or at a special called
meeting after the May

REGULAR MEETING

Public Hearing and | Railroad). POST NOTICE OF HEARINGS ON CITY’S | Gov’t Code, §43.063 (c).

send school district | WEBSITE AND MAINTAIN UNTIL HEARINGS

notice COMPLETE;

March 19, 2014** SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTICE (notify each school | Loc. Gov’'t Code § 43.905; send school

Publish  notice of | district of possible impact w/in the period prescribed for | district notice not less than 10 days nor more

Second Public | publishing the notice of the First Public Hearing.) than 20 days before the First Public Hearing.

Hearings

Ten days after the date | LAST DAY FOR SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN | Site hearing required if 10% of adult

the first notice of | PROTEST BY RESIDENTS (10 days after first | residents of tracts protest within 10 days after

Public Hearing is | newspaper notice) Ist newspaper notice. Loc. Gov’t Code, §

published 43.063 (b)

March 27, 2014% 1st PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE | Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days
PLAN (Not more than 40 days before the Ist reading of | before reading of ordinance. Loc. Gov’t
ordinance) SPECIAL CALLED MEETING Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065.

April 3,2014* 2nd PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE | Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days
PLAN (At least 20 days before 1st reading of ordinance.) | before reading of ordinance. Loc. Gov’t
REGULAR MEETING Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065.

Institution Date FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE Date of institution of proceedings. Not less

May 1, 2014% REGULAR MEETING than 20 days from the second public hearing

nor more than 40 days from the first public
hearing,
May 15, 2014; SECOND-FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE Not more than 90 days after 1* reading of

Ordinance § 43.064.

compatible with mapping format used by registrar

1st First Reading
Within 30 days of | CITY SENDS COPY OF MAP showing boundary | Elec. Code §42.0615
Second Reading changes to County Voter Registrar in a format that is

Within 60 days of
Second Reading

CITY PROVIDES CERTIFIED COPY OF

ORDINANCE AND MAPS TO:
1. County Clerk
2. County Appraisal District
3. County Tax Assessor Collector
4. 911 Addressing
5. Sheriff's Office
6. City Department Heads
7. State Comptroller

8. Franchise Holders

*Dates in BOLD are MANDATORY dates to follow this schedule. Please advise if deviation.
**Newspaper notices to paper by 5p.m. the preceding Wednesday
















EXHIBIT “A”













(i)  Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City;

(iii)  Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities,
construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the need therefore is
determined by the governing body under City policies;

(iv)  Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings and
other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate study and
traffic standards; and

(v) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established
policies of the City.

3) Capital Improvements. Construction of the following capital improvements shall be
initiated after the effective date of the annexation: Water and wastewater facilities that are
identified in the Capital Improvement Plan, as and when funded pursuant to such Plan. Upon
development of the subject properties or redevelopment, the landowners will be responsible for the
development costs the same as a developer in a similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect
at the time of development or redevelopment. No additional capital improvements are necessary at
this time to service the subject properties the same as similarly situated properties.

(4) Term. If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years.

(5) Property Description. The legal descriptions of the subject properties are as set forth in
exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service Plan is attached.










CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS

SCHEDULE FOR INVOLUNTARY ANNEXATIONS
RIDGEMAR LANDING +/- 304.13 ACRES & N. LAKELINE BOULEVARD +/- 594

DATE

ACTION/EVENT

LEGAL AUTHORITY

February 20, 2014

COUNCIL BY WRITTEN RESOLUTION Directs
notification to land owners; and sets two (2) Public
Hearings March 27, 2014 and April 3, 2014; Council
directs development of service plan for area to be annexed.

Loc. Gov’t Code, §§ 43.063 & 43.065;
Public Hearings: are on or after the 40th day
but before 20th day before institution of
proceedings.

By February 24, 2014

NOTICE TO property owners & utility providers

Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.062(a)

March 12, 2014**
Publish notice of First
Public Hearing and
send school district
notice

March 19, 2014**

NEWSPAPER NOTICES RE: FIRST AND SECOND
PUBLIC HEARINGS; (If applicable, certified Notice to
Railroad). POST NOTICE OF HEARINGS ON CITY’S
WEBSITE AND MAINTAIN UNTIL HEARINGS
COMPLETE;

SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTICE (notify each school

Not less than 10 days nor more than 20 days
before 1st and 2nd public hearings. Loc.
Gov’t Code, §43.063 (c).

Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.905; send school

published

Publish  notice of | district of possible impact w/in the period prescribed for | district notice not less than 10 days nor more
Second Public | publishing the notice of the First Public Hearing.) than 20 days before the First Public Hearing.
Hearings

Ten days after the date | LAST DAY FOR SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN | Site hearing required if 10% of adult
the first notice of | PROTEST BY RESIDENTS (10 days afier first | residents of tracts protest within 10 days after
Public Hearing is | newspaper notice) Ist newspaper notice. Loc. Gov’t Code, §

43.063 (b)

March 27, 2014*

1st PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE
PLAN (Not more than 40 days before the 1st reading of
ordinance) SPECIAL CALLED MEETING

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days
before reading of ordinance. Loc. Gov’t
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065.

April 3, 2014%

2nd PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE
PLAN (At least 20 days before st reading of ordinance.)
REGULAR MEETING

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days
before reading of ordinance. Loc. Gov’t
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065.

Or at a special called
meeting after the May

REGULAR MEETING

Institution Date FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE Date of institution of proceedings. Not less

May 1, 2014* REGULAR MEETING than 20 days from the second public hearing
nor more than 40 days from the first public
hearing.

May 15, 2014; SECOND-FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE Not more than 90 days after 1* reading of

Ordinance § 43.064.

compatible with mapping format used by registrar

1st First Reading
Within 30 days of | CITY SENDS COPY OF MAP showing boundary | Elec. Code §42.0615
Second Reading changes to County Voter Registrar in a format that is

Within 60 days of
Second Reading

CITY PROVIDES CERTIFIED COPY OF
ORDINANCE AND MAPS TO:

County Clerk

County Appraisal District
County Tax Assessor Collector
911 Addressing

Sheriff’s Office

City Department Heads

State Comptroller

8. Franchise Holders

Nk RN

*Dates in BOLD are MANDATORY dates to follow this schedule. Please advise if deviation.
**Newspaper notices to paper by Sp.m. the preceding Wednesday







ORDINANCE

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, WAIVING THE
APPLICATION OF THE SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE TO A
SUBDIVISION OF LAND; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.

Whereas, the City Council of the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”), regulates platting
and subdivision of land in the city limits and the extraterritorial jurisdiction;

Whereas, the City’s subdivision regulations apply to divisions of land into two or more
tracts when any part of such land will contain less than five (5) acres in area when subdivided;

Whereas, MHI Central Texas, LLC, the developer of the Carneros Ranch subdivision
(the “Developer”) proposes to purchase a 3.619 acre tract of land, out of a larger an
approximately 151 acre tract of land, located in Williamson County, Texas, being more
particularly described in Volume 298 Page 521, of the Official Public Records of Williamson
County, Texas (the “Parent Tract’), generally shown in Exhibit A (the “Land”), which
conveyance will constitute a subdivision of land subject to the City’s subdivision regulations;

Whereas, the developer intends to add the Land to the Carneros Ranch subdivision, and
subdivide the land as generally shown on Exhibit A;

Whereas, the developer requested a waiver of the requirement that a plat be prepared and
approved by the City prior to conveyance of the Land;

Whereas, the Land, through development of the Carneros Ranch subdivision, and the
Parent Tract will have access to public rights-of-way after conveyance of the Land; and

Whereas, the purpose and intent of the subdivision regulations, which is to ensure
orderly, planned, economical, and efficient development of land will be served by granting this
waiver;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT:

Section 1. Findings. The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and
are hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact.

Section 2. Waiver Granted. The City Council waives the application of Exhibit A,
Article 10.02 of the Code of Ordinances (the “Subdivision Ordinance”) to the conveyance of the
Land from the owner of the Land as of the Effective Date of this Ordinance to the Developer;
provided that Developer signs and records a restrictive covenant in the property records that
prohibits conveyance of the Land until a final plat for Carneros Ranch, Section 2, which includes
the Land, is approved and recorded.

Section 3. Fffective Date. This Ordinance shall be in force and effect from and after
its passage on the date shown below.




Section 4. Open Meetings. It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time,
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551,
Tex. Gov't. Code.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 20" day of February, 2014.

ATTEST: THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS

Debbie Haile, City Secretary Christopher Fielder, Mayor
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Plans CSF Civil Group, LLC
Permits 3636 Executive Center Drive, Suite 209
Construction Austin, Texas 78731
(512) 614-4466
February 10, 2014

Mr. Tom Yantis

Director of Development Services
City of Leander

P.O. Box 319

Austin, Texas 78646

Re: Carneros Ranch Subdivision
Waiver from Subdivision Ordinance Requirements

Dear Mr. Yantis:

Our Client MHI Central Texas, LLC is under contract to purchase a 3.62 acre portion of a tract currently owned
by Nancy Gilpin. The purchase tract is delineated by the hatched area shown on the attached Exhibit. We have
been informed by the City that this acquisition will require a Waiver to the Subdivision Ordinance from Article
I, Section 6(a){1). Hence, we are hereby requesting the granting of this waiver, subject to the acquisition of the
property, which will allow our Client to plat the 3.62 acre property into the Carneros Ranch Subdivision.

The original purpose of the purchase was to acquire the right-of-way necessary to make the connection of the
existing street of Frio Lane in the Vista Ridge subdivision with the same proposed street in the Carneros Ranch
Subdivision. Currently Frio Lane is separated by the 100’+/- strip of property owned by the Gilpins. However
the current owner would only sell the right-of-way if the purchaser also acquired the strip adjacent to the
single family subdivision. In the interest of making that connection our Client agreed to the acquisition of the
additional acreage.

We believe that granting this waiver benefits the community in two ways, 1) The construction of the Frio Lane
street connection will provide a vital secondary fire and emergency access to the Carneros Ranch subdivision
as well looping the water supply, and, 2) By including the remaining area into the Carneros Ranch Plats the
undeveloped strip between the existing Vista Ridge and Carneros Ranch subdivision will be “cleaned-up”.

The remaining portions of the Nancy Gilpin Tract will not be adversely impacted. The eastern 1.56 acre
remainder has direct access to Bagdad Road including access to water and wastewater utilities. The City also
has the authority to require future platting of this lot with any potential development of the tract. The western
140 acres has access to Lakeline Blvd. as well as the streets in the existing adjoining subdivisions.

In summary we believe that your support of the granting of this waiver request is in the best interest of the
City.

erely,

Jame3M. Cook, P.E.
CSF Civil Group, LLC













City of Leander, Texas Redesign of Bagdad Road

ATTACHMENT A

SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE ENGINEER

1. Preliminary Desien Phase (Lump Sum)

30% Milestone

® © © o © © © ©

-]

Attend pre-work (kick-off) conference with the city to review old plans.
Collect all available information from the city.

Field recon. and field inventory photos.

Adjust preliminary plans and present desired new alignment.

Adjust preliminary drainage area map and runoff calculations for entire project,
Adjust preliminary hydraulic calculations for RC Box and cross culverts.
Prepare preliminary cross sections for entire project.

Update and adjust preliminary Title Sheet.

Prepare opinion of probable costs.

QA/QC.

Present concept 30% complete submittal (2 sets) (1 Meeting with City of Leander).

65% Milestone

© ®© 0 © o ¢

Review/incorporate 30% complete review comments.

Advance Design - CADD and engineering design (including plan/profile sheets).
Incorporate sutvey data - adjust file.

Prepare opinion of probable costs.

Field check preliminary plans.

Update preliminary drainage plans.

Update preliminary typical sections.

Present preliminary 65% complete submittal (2 sets) (1 Meeting with City of Leander).

2. Tinal Design Phase ~ Plan Set Development (Lump Sum Engineering Fee)

90% Milestone

®© ©

® ©

Review/incorporate 65% complete review comments.

Final CAD and Drainage Design (including plan/profile sheets, drainage area maps, storm
drainage plan profiles, culvert layouts, hydraulic computations, signing and striping,
intersection details & SW3P).

Advance preparation of cross sections.

Finalize Typical Section.

Prepare opinion of probable cost.

QA/QC.

Present 90% complete submittal (2 sets) (1 Meeting with City of Leander).

Attachment A
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City of Leander, Texas Redesign of Bagdad Road

100% Milestone

o Review/incorporate 90% complete review comments.

o Final Design CADD and Engineering Design (including plan/profile sheets, drainage area
maps, storm drainage plan profiles, culvert layouts, hydraulic computations, signing and
striping, intersection details, SW3P, construction details and standards).

Finalize preparation of cross sections.

Prepare specifications with bid proposal.

Prepare opinion of probable cost.

Field check final plans.

QA/QC.

Present 100% complete submittal (2 sets) (1 Meeting with City of Leander).

e @ ©¢ © & ©

Final Submittal

o Review/incorporate 100% complete review comments.
e Prepare final version of specifications.
e Present 100% complete submittal (2 sets)

Additional Services ~ (Hourly, Not to Exceed Fee)
Scope of services for these tasks are listed in Attachment B.

Bid Phase Services

Construction Administration

Design Surveying

Right Surveying, Parcel, Plat and Deed Preparation
Utility Coordination

Environmental Permitting Services

RIS AW

Attachment A
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City of Leander, Texas Bagdad Road Redesign

ATTACHMENT C

SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE CITY

1. Provide existing available information including roadway plans, utility plans and right-
of-way maps.

2. Utility relocation coordination required beyond those services to be provided by the
Engineer identified in Attachments A & B.

3. General design criteria and requirements.
4. Hard and soft copies of applicable standard plans, specifications and general notes.

5. Timely review of submittals and transmittal of review plans. Plans review comments
will be consolidated onto one set of review plans and returned to the Engineer for each
project submittal.

6. Copy, assemble, distribute and receive bid documents.

Attachment C
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(b)  Invoices for payment under this Contract shall be sent to:

Wayne S. Watts, P.E.

City Engineer

City of Leander

P.0.Box 319

Leander, Texas 78646-0319

Payments may be based on completion of the Work, fulfillment of milestones, progress

payments or any other method that is established in the agreed Statement of Work. Inno
event shall Professional invoice OWNER more than once monthly.

Article 7. Acceptance of the Work

When Professional can demonstrate that the Work is complete in accordance with the
acceptance criteria included in the Statement of Work and so notifies OWNER, OWNER
shall review the Work for general compliance with the Contract. If the Work appears to
comply with the Contract requirements, and Professional has furnished all required
documentation, OWNER shall notify Professional in writing of OWNER's Acceptance of
the Work. Acceptance of the Work shall not limit nor diminish Professional's
responsibilities, duties and warranties with respect to the Work, The Work shall be
performed by the Professional in a manner consistent with good practices for the
profession, and the standards and skills of the professionals practicing such profession in
Travis County and Williamson County, Texas.

Article 8. Jobsite Inspection

If required by OWNER, Professional’s representatives shall observe the jobsite and clearly
understand the requirements and risks of the Work to be performed, the jobsite conditions,
traffic conditions, the proximity of high-voltage power lines, utilities, and other local
conditions likely to affect Professional's performance before accepting any Task Order.
Acceptance of a Task Order shall constitute the Professional’s certification that it has by
observation satisfied itself with respect to all such local conditions and is willing to accept
all risks they impose.

Article 9. Independent Contractor

(a)  Professional shall perform in all respects as an independent contractor and not as an
employee, partner, joint venture or agent of the OWNER. The Work to be performed by
Professional shall be subject to the OWNER's review, approval and acceptance as provided
in the Contract Documents, but the detailed manner and method of performance shall be
under the control of Professional. The accuracy, completeness, and scheduling of the
Work and the application of proper means and methods for performance of the Work are
entirely the responsibility of Professional. Professional shall be solely responsible for
hiring, supervising and paying its employees, subcontractors and suppliers. Professional
shall be solely responsible for payment of all (i) compensation, including any employment
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benefits, to its employees, (ii) taxes, including withholding for federal income tax purposes,
employment and unemployment taxes, and (iii) such other expenses as may be owed to
Professional’s employees. However, because Professional’s Work may be associated in
the minds of the public with OWNER, Professional shall ensure that all Work by its
employees, subcontractors and agents is performed in an orderly, responsible and
courteous manner. Non-citizen workers shall be properly documented.

(b)  Upon prior notification to and written approval of OWNER, Professional may hire
subcontractors to perform work hereunder. Professional shall be responsible to OWNER
for the performance of all such subcontractors, OWNER shall require any and all such
subcontractors to sign agreements with Professional that bind the subcontractors to
perform subcontracts in accordance with the Contract Documents. Upon the request of
OWNER, Professional shall furnish OWNER with copies of such subcontracts. In addition,
Professional agrees that it is Professional's responsibility to ensure that such subcontractors
make all appropriate tax payments or tax withholding in relation to subcontractor's
employees providing work to OWNER through Professional under this Contract.
Professional represents that it and its subcontractors are fully trained to perform the tasks
required by this Contract and that they need no training by the OWNER. Professional
further understands and agrees that it will be responsible to OWNER for the quality and
performance of any Work performed by any such subcontractor.

Article 10. Licenses and Permits

(8)  Professional shall procure and maintain at its expense all licenses and permits
necessary for it to perform the Work.

(b)  Professional shall ensure that its subcontractors’ and their employees are all
properly licensed to perform their respective portions of the Work.

Article 11. Governing Laws, Regulations & Standards

(a) This Contract shall be governed, interpreted and enforced under the laws of the
State of Texas, without regard to its conflict of law principles. In the event of litigation
between the Parties arising out of this Contract issued under it, venue for such litigation
shall be in a court of competent jurisdiction in Williamson County, Texas.

(b)  Professional shall be aware of and shall comply with all non-conflicting Federal,
State, and local laws, ordinances, codes (including applicable Professional codes) and
regulations applicable to the Work, any equipment to be fabricated and delivered and for
compliance with standards and codes of technical societies that have been adopted by law
or regulation or compliance with which is required in the Contract Documents. If any of
the Work fails to comply with such laws, ordinances, codes, and regulations, Professional
shall bear any expense arising from that failure, including the costs to bring the Work into
compliance, '

(© Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, during the performance of the
Agreement, Professional agrees to comply with all applicable regulations of Executive
Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, and the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of
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the Secretary of Labor as they may apply to Equal Employment Opportunity. Professional
will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order No. 11246 of
September 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor
pursuant thereto, and will permit access to its books, records, and accounts by the
cognizant agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain
compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.

Article 12. Intoxicants & Drugs: Employee Conduct

OWNER shall not allow intoxicants or illegal drugs on its jobsite. Professional shall not at
any time allow personnel for whom it is responsible on the jobsite if they are under the
influence of any substance that may impair their performance. Professional shall promptly
remove from the jobsite any person who is or appears to be under the influence of any of
these substances or is otherwise unsafe or disorderly. Professional shall ensure that its
employees, subcontractors and their employees avoid excessive noise, exceeding speed
limits or reckless driving, use of weapons, or trespass on land not owned by or under
easement to OWNER. If private property must be entered or crossed to perform the Work,
Professional shall obtain permission from the property owner before entering.

Article 13. Risk of Loss

(a) Professional shall bear the expense and risk of loss or damage to work in progress,
completed Work, materials, equipment, and all other incidents of the Work prior to
Acceptance of the Work, Professional shall promptly replace or repair any loss or damage
at its own expense. In the event of substantial loss or damage due to Force Majeure, the
schedules shall be equitably extended. Professional shall bear the expense of storage space
for stored materials, whether on-site or off-site, and shall bear the risk of loss or damage to
all such materials. Professional shall take reasonable precautions to protect the materials
from weather damage, burglary, pilferage and similar hazards.

(b)  Professional shall bear the risk of loss or damage to its own equipment, tools,
supplies and property and those of its subcontractors and suppliers, regardless of the cause
of loss or damage throughout the project.

Article 14, Warranties and Representations

(8) Warranty of Title. Professional warrants the title to any goods it delivers to
OWNER incidental to the performance of the Work and that said goods will be free and
clear of all liens, mortgages, security interests or other encumbrances.

(b)  General Warranty of the Work. Professional represents that all Work shall be
performed in a Professional manner consistent with the industry standards and the
standards of the profession of Professional. Professional shall correct, without delay and at
its own expense, any portion of the Work that does not meet the foregoing warranty and is
discovered within one year after Acceptance of the Work by re-performing that portion of
the Work. Any repair, replacement, or modification of the Work performed pursuant to the
provisions of this paragraph shall be supplied or repaired on the same terms and conditions
as provided for herein for the Work.
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(c)  Intellectual Property Representation, Professional represents that the Work and
the processes used in performing it shall not infringe on any valid United States patent,
registered United States copyright, trademark or trade secret,

(d)  Business Standing Warranty. Professional warrants, represents, and agrees that
if (i) it is a corporation or limited liability company, then it is a corporation duly organized,
validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Texas, or a foreign
corporation or limited liability company duly authorized and in good standing to conduct
business in the State of Texas, that it has all necessary corporate power and has received all
necessaty corporate approvals to execute and deliver the Agreement, and the individual
executing the Agreement on behalf of Professional has been duly authorized to act for and
bind Professional; or (ii) if it is a partnership, limited partnership, or limited liability
partnership, then it has all necessary partnership power and has secured all necessary
approvals to execute and deliver this Agreement and perform all its obligations hereunder;
and the individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Professional has been duly
authorized to act for and bind Professional.

Article 15. General Indemnity

(a)  Professional shall hold the OWNER and its councilmember’s, officers, employees,
agents and professionals harmless from all claims, damages, losses and expenses (jointly,
“Claims™), including reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of, or resulting from or arising
under this Agreement, provided that any such liabilities, damage, loss, or expense is caused
by the negligent, grossly negligent or intentional act or willful misconduct of Professional,
anyone directly or indirectly employed by it, or anyone for whose acts it is legally liable.

(b)  To the extent allowed by law, OWNER agrees to indemnify and hold harmless
Professional, its directors, officers and employees, from and against any and all losses,
claims, attorneys’ fees and expenses arising from the negligent act or omission or willful
misconduct of the OWNER related to this Contract which causes the death of, injury to or
damage to the property of, any person.

(c)  If the parties are concurrently negligent, each party’s liability shall be limited to
that portion of negligence attributable to it as determined under the applicable
proportionate responsibility rules of the state of Texas.

(d)  Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, neither party shall be liable to
indemnify the other for the negligence, gross negligence or willful misconduct of the other.

(¢)  The foregoing indemnity provisions shall be deemed independent covenants and
shall survive completion of or any termination of the Agreement or any claimed breach
thereof, Professional's indemnity responsibility as specified in this clause shall not include
special, incidental, punitive or consequential damages.

Article 16. Intellectual Property Indemnity

(a)  Professional shall, at its own expense, defend all suits or proceedings instituted
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against OWNER, its officers, agents, employees, or professionals based upon any claim
that the Work, or any part thereof, or the process performed thereby constitutes an
infringement of either any patent or copyright of the United States or of any tradematk or
trade secret protected by either federal or state law. Professional shall pay all awards of
damages assessed which result from any such claim, suit, or proceeding and shall
indemnify and save OWNER harmless against losses, expenses (including reasonable
attorney's fees), and damages resulting from any such claim, suit, or proceeding, including
obedience to resulting decrees and to resulting compromises for which Professional is
legally liable.

(b) If, in any such suit, a restraining order or temporary injunction is granted,
Professional shall make every reasonable effort, by giving a satisfactory bond or otherwise,
to secure the suspension of any such restraining order or temporary injunction. If, in any
such suit, the Work or any part thereof or the process performed thereby is held to
constitute an infringement and its use be permanently enjoined, Professional shall at once
make every reasonable effort to secure for OWNER a license at Professional's expense
authorizing the continued use of the alleged infringing portion of the Work. If Professional
is unable to secure such license within a reasonable time, Professional shall, at its own
expense and without impairing performance requirements, either provide non-infinging
replacements or modify the Work to ecliminate the infiingement. In addition to
indemnifying and saving OWNER harmless, Professional shall reimburse OWNER for
any costs incurred as a result of the unavailability of the infiinging item or its
non-infringing replacement.

(c) Such indemnity shall not apply to infringement claims that are based upon patent,
copyright, trademark, or trade secret violations where such information was supplied by
OWNER or which were directed for use by OWNER.

Article 17. Indemnity Procedures

With respect to any claim for Indemnity, the following procedures shall apply:

(a) Notice. Promptly after receipt by any entity entitled to indemnification of notice of the
commencement or threatened commencement of any civil, adniinistrative, or investigative
action or proceeding involving a claim in respect of which the indemnities shall seck
indemnification, the indemnities shall notify the indemnitor of such claim in writing. No
failure to so notify an indemnitor shall relieve the Indemnitor of its obligations under this
Agreement except to the extent that it can demonstrate damages attributable to such failure.
Within fifteen (15) days following receipt of written notice from the indemnitee relating to
any claim, but no later than ten (10) days before the date on which any response to a
complaint or summons is due, the indemnitor shall notify the indemnitee in writing if the
indemnitor elects to assume control of the defense and settlement of that claim (a "Notice
of Election"). Tt is specifically provided that any indemnitee may by separate legal counsel
participate in any procecding brought by a third party and raise defenses available to
indemnities, without waiving or limiting the benefits of this article or any duty or
responsibility of indemnitor; provided that such indemnitee shall not attempt to limit or
waive any defenses raised by indemnitor.
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(b) Procedure for Notice of Election. If the indemnitor delivers a Notice of Election
relating to any claim within the required notice period, the indemnitor shall be entitled to
have sole control over the defense and settlement of such claim; provided, however, that (i)
the indemnities shall be entitled to participate in the defense of such claim and to employ
counsel at its own expense to assist in the handling of such claim, and (ii) the indemnitor
shall obtain the prior written approval of the indemnities before entering into any
settlement of such claim or ceasing to defend against such claim. After the indemnitor has
delivered a Notice of Election relating to any claim in accordance with the preceding
paragraph, the indemnitor shall not be liable to the indemnities for any legal expenses
incurred by such indemnities in connection with the defense of that claim. In addition, the
indemnitor shall not be required to indemnify the indemnities for any amount paid or
payable by such indemnities in the settlement of any claim for which the indemnitor has
delivered a timely Notice of Election if such amount was agreed to without the written
consent of the indemnitor.

(c) Procedure Where No Notice of Election Is Delivered. If the indemnitor does not
deliver a Notice of Election relating to any claim within the required notice period, the
indemnities shall have the right to defend the claim in such mamner as it may deem
appropriate. If the indemnitor fails to deliver a Notice of Election for any claim for which
indemnitor is obligated to indemnify the indemnities pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement, then the indemnitor will be solely responsible for any and all costs and
expenses incurred by the indemnities in defending such claim and the indemnitor shall
promptly reimburse the indemnities for all such costs and expenses.

Article 18, Insurance

Professional shall obtain and maintain the insurance coverage specified below on an
occurrence-basis and shall provide to Owner an insurance certificate listing the coverage
before starting work on any OWNER property. THE COVERAGE SHALL NOT BE
CONSTRUED AS ESTABLISHING OR LIMITING PROFESSIONAL'S
LIABILITY UNDER THE INDEMNITY PROVISION. OWNER shall be listed as an
"additional insured" on all policies other than the Workers Compensation and Professional
Liability policies. Professional for itself and its insurers hereby waive subrogation against
OWNER, its affiliates, their Boards of Directors, Directors, officers, employees and agents.
Professional’s failure to maintain the required insurance coverage at any time during the
contract period may be grounds for OWNER to suspend the Contract and withhold
payment until insurance coverage is satisfactory.

Type of Insurance Minimum Coverage
(a)  Workers' Compensation

Coverage A - statutory

Coverage B - $250,000 employer's liability
(b)  General Liability

Bodily Injury $500,000 per person

Bodily Injury $1,000,000 per occurrence

Property Damage $1,000,000 per occurrence
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(c)  Automobile Liability
(including owned or leased vehicles and heavy equipment)

Bodily Injury $1,000,000 per occurrence
Property Damage $ 500,000 per occurrence

The automobile liability coverage shall apply to owned, non-owned, hired and leased
vehicles. Before work begins, a certificate of all required insurance shall be filed with
Project Manager of OWNER.

(d)  Professional Liability $1,000,000 per occurrence

Article 19. Force Majeure

(a)  The nonperformance or delayed performance by Professional or OWNER of any
obligation under the Agreement shall be excused if such nonperformance or delay is
caused by an event beyond the control of the affected party ("Force Majeure"), except to
the extent that Professional knew of or should reasonably have been able to foresee such an
event and failed to take reasonable measures to avoid the event. Items beyond the control
of the parties include, but are not limited to: acts of war, acts of a public enemy; acts of
domestic or foreign terrorism, natural disasters; strikes, epidemics or quarantine
restrictions; riot, or sabotage; and acts of civil or military authority having jurisdiction.

(b)  Upon occurrence of a Force Majeure, the date for performance of the Work shall be
extended for a period equal to the time lost by reason of the delay, provided Professional or
OWNER has taken reasonable steps to proceed with the performance of the Agreement and

has made written notification of such delay and of any cotrective action taken. Professional
shall not be entitled to any increase in compensation by reason of Force Majuere.

(c)  The following delays shall not constitute excusable delays in performance by
Professional and shall not constitute a reason for extending the date for performance of the
Work:

1. Delays by subcontractors or by suppliers for reasons other than Force
Majeure;

2. Delays in approval of documentation because of inadequate performance or
to unrealistic approval schedules;

3. Delays caused by Professional's lack of sufficient personnel with the
necessary skills.
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Article 22, Termination for Convenience

(a) OWNER shall have the right to terminate this Contract for its convenience at any
time. After receipt of the notice of termination, the Professional shall immediately proceed
with the following obligations, regardless of any delay in determining or adjusting any
amounts due at that point in the Contract:

1. Stop all ongoing Work.

2. Place no further subcontracts or orders for materials or Work.

3. Terminate all subcontracts.

4, Cancel all materials and equipment orders, as applicable.

5. Take any action that is necessary to protect and preserve all property

related to this Contract that is in the possession of the Professional.

(b)  Inthe event of a termination under paragraph (a) of this Article, OWNER shall pay
equitable termination charges, for all billable time expended or portions of Work
completed (as applicable) and materials purchased, and if the Work includes construction
profit on completed portions, and out-of-pocket costs that have been reasonably incurred
by Professional as a result of terminating this Contract. OWNER shall not be liable in
connection with any termination under this Article for special, incidental, consequential, or
punitive damages, or for loss of anticipated future work, anticipated profits, administrative
costs or overhead on anticipated work, or other indirect costs.

Article 23, Termination for Cause

(@)  The occurrence of any one or more of the following events will constitute an event
of default:

(1) Professional’s persistent failure to perform the Work in accordance with the
Contract Documents (including, but not limited to, failure to supply sufficient
skilled workers, suitable materials or equipment, or to adhere to project schedules
as adjusted from time to time pursuant by the parties);

(2) Professional’s disregard of applicable laws or regulations;
(3) Professional’s distegard of the authority of OWNER’s Representative;

(4) Professional’s violation in any substantial way of any provisions of the
Contract Documents;
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(5) TFailure of Professional to pay subcontractors and/or material suppliers; or
(6) Professional’s violation of OWNER’s ethics policy.

(b)  If one or more of the events identified in paragraph (a) occur, OWNER may
terminate this Agreement, if after giving Professional (and the surety, if any) seven (7)
calendar days prior written notice, unless such event of default shall have been cured.

(©) If this Contract has been so terminated by OWNER, the termination will not affect
any rights or remedies of OWNER against Professional or any surety then existing or
which may thereafter accrue. No retention or payment of moneys due Professional by
OWNER will release Professional from liability.

(d In such a circumstance, OWNER shall notify Professional in writing of the
termination, with copies of the notice to OWNER’s jobsite personnel. Upon notice of
termination, Professional and its subcontractors shall promptly stop the Work and allow
OWNER to take possession of the jobsite including any equipment and materials identified
to the project (whether stored on-site or off-site), after securing the jobsite from safety and
environmental hazards.

Article 24. Suspension

(a) OWNER may, at any time and at its sole option, suspend all or any portions of the
Work to be performed under this Agreement by providing ten (10) calendar days written
notice to the Professional. Upon receipt of any such notice, Professional shall:

1. Immediately discontinue the Work on the date and to the extent specified in
the notice.

2. Place no further orders or subcontracts for materials, Work, or facilities
with respect to the suspended portion of the Work, other than to the extent
necessary to protect any portion of the Work already performed.

3. Promptly make every reasonable effort to obtain suspension, upon terms
satisfactory to OWNER, of all orders, subcontracts, and rental agreements
to the extent that they relate to performance of the portion of Work
suspended by the notice.

4, Continue to protect and maintain the portion of the Work already completed,
including the portion of the Work suspended hereunder, unless otherwise
specifically stated in the notice.

5. Continue to perform Professional's obligations for the portions of the Work

not suspended.
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(b)  As full compensation for such suspension, Professional will be reimbursed for the
following costs, reasonably incurred, without duplication of any item, to the extent that
such costs actually result from such suspension of Work.

1. A reasonable standby charge to be negotiated between OWNER and the
Professional sufficient to compensate Professional for keeping (to the
extent required in the notice) its organization and equipment committed to
the Work in a standby status.

2. All reasonable costs associated with demobilization of Professional's
facility, forces, and equipment.

3. A reasonable amount to be negotiated between OWNER and the
Professional to reimburse the Professional for the cost of maintaining and
protecting that portion of the Work upon which activities have been
suspended.

4. All billable time reasonably extended or portions of Work completed (as
applicable) prior to the suspension, materials purchased, and if the Work
includes construction profit on completed portions, and out-of-pocket costs
that have been reasonable incurred by Professional.

()  Upon receipt of notice to restart the suspended portion of the Work, Professional
shall immediately resume performance on the suspended portion of the Work to the extent
required in the notice. Within 14 calendar days after receipt of notice to restart the
suspended portion of the Work, the Professional shall submit a revised schedule for
approval by OWNER, If, as a result of any suspension, the cost to Professional of
subsequently performing the Work or the time required to do so is changed, a claim for an
adjustment in the contract price may be made. Any claim on the part of Professional for
change in price or extension of time shall be made in accordance with this Agreement.

Article 25, Dispute Resolution

The Parties agree that in the event of a dispute concerning the performance or
non-performance of any obligations flowing from or as a result of this Contract and prior to
the initiation of any litigation, the Parties will voluntarily submit the dispute to the Travis
County Dispute Resolution Center for mediation as though it were referred through the
operation of the Texas Alternative Dispute Resolution Procedures Act, Title 7, Chapter
154, TEX. CIV. PRAC. & REM. ANN,, (Vernon's 1986). No record, statement, or
declaration resulting from or in connection with such alternate dispute resolution
procedure may be used in evidence in subsequent litigation except to demonstrate that this
article has been complied with in good faith by a party. The use of such center shall not be
or constitute a waiver of venue.

Article 26, Notices

All notices or other communications required under this Contract may be made either by
personal delivery in writing or by certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested.
Notice shall be deemed to have been given when delivered or mailed to the parties at their
respective addresses as set forth below or when mailed to the last address provided in
writing to the other party by the addressee.
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Owner:  Wayne S, Watts, P.E. Professional:
City Engineer
City Of Leander
P.O. Box 319
Leander, TX 78464-0319

Article 27, Titles and Section Headings

The titles and section headings of this Contract are included for convenience only and shall
not be deemed to constitute a part of this Contract.

Article 28. Interpretation and Reliance

While this Contract form was initiated by OWNER, Professional had the opportunity to
take exception to and seck clarification of it. Thus, this Contract is the product of
negotiations between the Parties. No presumption will apply in favor of any party in the
interpretation of this Contract or in resolution of any ambiguity of any provision.

Article 29, Failure to Act

No action or failure to act by either party shall be a waiver of a right or duty afforded under
the Contract, nor shall such action or failure to act constitute a breach of this Contract,
except as specifically agreed to in writing.

Article 30. Contract Non-Exclusive

The Contract is not exclusive. Professional has the right to perform Work for others during
the term of the Contract, and OWNER has the right to hire others to perform the same or
similar tasks.

Article 31, Third Party Beneficiaries

There are no third party beneficiaries to this Contract and the provisions of this Contract
shall not create any legal or equitable right, remedy or claim enforceable by any petson,
firm, or organization other than the Parties and their permitted successors and permitted
assigns.

Article 32. Mitigation of Damages
In all cases the Party establishing or alleging a breach of contract or a right to be

indemnified in accordance with this Contract shall be under a duty to take all necessary
measures to mitigate the loss which has occurred, provided that it can do so without
unreasonable inconvenience or cost.

Article 33. Severability

This Contract is severable and if any one or more parts of it are found to be invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect the remainder of this Contract if it can be given effect without the
invalid parts.
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Article 34, Integration & Contract Modification

This Contract contains the entire and integrated agreement between Professional and
OWNER as to its subject matter and supersedes all prior negotiations, correspondence,
understandings, representations and agreements, written or oral, related to it. In case of
conflict between the terms and conditions of this Contract and those of any standard sales
forms presented by Professional or such forms appearing in or referenced by Professional's
bid or proposal, the terms and conditions of this Contract shall prevail. The terms and
conditions of this Contract can be modified only by a writing signed by an authorized
representative of both Professional and OWNER.

Executed to be effective as of the day of , 2014,
City of Leander:
By: By
Chris Fielder, Mayor Name:
Title:
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CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS

Application to Conduct a Taxicab Business

87| ng% SeryiCed
Home Address: \9) I ﬂﬂ 416’1/1/004, é”/ City /vé@?fﬁé// Zip 7?44’{
Home Phone S//Q g?ﬂﬂ 0982&7 Cell Phone
Emall Address: /mféﬂlﬁ1ﬁ?%ﬁgﬂzl (/Uﬁ’ﬂwé CQJ’/'V -

Name

Are you an; [] Individual [ Firm (M Comporation

It a Firfn, list the pame and address of each member:

Francs. ¢ 0Koro ol Tanaleweod B Léﬂ%ﬂk i TRAcs /
Lelen OKsro 101 Zeemdltwrid ﬁrzfm//ﬂrﬁﬂ%w_

Tohn T. Okoi il tenddposet PV,@M//W 75 7%

IF MORE SPACE 1S NEEDED PLEASE ATTACH A SEPARATE SHEET .

Proposed Business Name,
Clty, Zip

Address;_

Phoqe:

Number of vehicles .in flest!

74







CITY OF LEANDER CAB RATES

FIRST

1/6 MILE $2.50
ADDITIONAL

1/6 MILE 40
WAITING

TIME PER/HOUR 29.00

Senior Citizens and Disabled Veterans paying out of pocket get 5% discount.

CONDITIONS OF ALL FARES

1. Passengers in the same cab traveling between the same points will be considered as one party.
A multiple fare may not be charged.

2. Driveris required to reset the meter at each destination when discharging passengers who are
riding in the same cab with passengers who have different destinations except when one person

pays fare for all passengers.







passenger will owe you additional money to their destination.

Abilene
Liano
Gollad
Corpus

Bartlett

Marble Fall

Beeville
New
Braunsfels
Bellville

Rockdale

56
208
307
532
124
119
448

150
261
168

Johnson City 200

El Paso
Boeme
Brady
Smithville

Fort Hood

Brownsville

Temple
La Grange
Gainesville

Burnet

1,414

238
336
104
180
861
166
168
619
134

College Station
Amarillo
Lago Vista
Granger
Cuero
Beaumont

Driftwood

Houston
Dripping Spgs
Belton
San Antonio
Jonestown
Elroy
Flatonia
Seguin
Killen
Forth Worth
Brownwood
Tyler
Lampasas

Galveston

263
1,209
86
110
230
609
58

398
89
147
215
68
48
191
145
180
463
343
715
178
525

Goldthwaite
Columbus
Bandera
Luling
Hallettsville
Dallas
Hearne
Pace Bend
Park
Huntsville
Elgin
Blanco
San Marcos
Junction
Kerrville
Brenham
Taylor
Kingsland
Fredericksburg
Bryan
Victoria

Laredo

259
215
288
107
235
480
222

120
389
89
100
98
342
255
245
89
168
215
268
315
600




Waco 254 Caldwell 215 Gatesville 245
LBJ Ranch 175 Wimberley 154 Cameron 198
Giddings 145 Lexington 182




’Corporations Section
P.0.Box 13697
Austin, Texas 7871 1-3697

R

Deputy Secretary of State

Office of the Secretary of State

CERTIFICATE OF FILING
OF

CITY TRANSPORT SERVICES, INC.
File Number: 801910870

The undersigned, as Secretary of State of Texas, hereby certifies that a Certificate of Formation for the
above named Domestic For-Profit Corporation has been received in this office and has been found to
conform to the applicable provisions of law,

ACCORDINGLY, the undersigned, as Secretary of State, and by virtue of the authority vesied in the

-

secretary by law, hereby issues this certificate evidencing filing effective on the date shown below.
The issuance of this certificate does not authorize the use of a name in this state in violation of the rights

of another under the federal Trademark Act of 1946, the Texas trademark law, the Assumed Business or
Professional Name Act, or the common law.

Dated: 01/07/2014

Effective: 01/07/2014

Coby Shorter I1T
Deputy Secretary of State

Come visit us on the internet al http:/iwww.sos.slate. tx.us/
Phone: (512) 463-5555 Fax: (512) 463-5709 Dial: 7-1-1 for Relay Services
Prepared by: Mary Ann Conkel TID: 10306 Document: 523363230002




.ym IRS DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
Y J INTERNAL: REVENUE SERVICE
CINCINNATI OH 45999-0023

Date of this notice: 01-13-2014

Employer Identification Number:
46-4506830

Form: SS-4

Number of this notice: CP 575 A

CITY TRANSPORT SERVICES INC
% FRANCIS CHIMEZIE OKORO
1011 TANGLEWOOD DR For assistance you may call us at:

LEANDER, TX 78641 1-800-829-4933

IF YOU WRITE, ATTACH THE
STUB AT THE END OF THIS NOTICE.

WE ASSIGNED YOU AN EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER

Thank you for applying for an Employer Identification Number (EIN). We assigned you
EIN 46-4506830. This EIN will identify you, your business accounts, tax returns, and
documents, even if you have no employees. Please keep this notice in your permanent
records.

When filing tax documents, payments, and related correspondence, it is very important
that you use your EIN and complete name and address exactly as shown above. Any variation
may cause a delay in processing, result in incorrect information in your account, or even
cause you to be assigned more than one EIN. 1If the information is not correct as shown
above, please make the correction using the attached tear off stub and return it to us.

Based on the information received from you or your representative, you must file
the following form(s) by the date(s) showm.

Form 940 01/31/2015
Form 944 01/31/2015
Form 1120 03/15/2015

If you have questions about the form(s) or the due date(s) shown, you can call us at
the phone number or write to us at the address shown at the top of this notice. If you
need help in detexrmining your annual accounting period (tax year), see Publication 538,
Accounting Periods and Methods.

We assigned you a tax classification based on information obtained from you or your
representative. It is not a legal determination of your tax classification, and is not
binding on the IRS. If you want a legal determination of your tax classification, you may
request a private letter ruling from the IRS under the guidelines in Revenue Procedure
2004-1, 2004-1 I.R.B. 1 (or superseding Revenue Procedure for the year at issue). Note:
Certain tax classification elections can be requested by filing Form 8832, Entity
Classification Election. See Form 8832 and its instructions for additional information.

INPORTANT INFORMATION FOR S CORPORATION ELECTION:

If you intend to elect to file your return as a small business corporation, an
election to file a Form 1120-S must be made within certain timeframes and the
corporation must meet certain tests. All of this information is included in the
instructions for Forxrm 2553, Election by a Small Business Corporation.







TEXAS LIABILITY INSURANGE CARD

COMPANY PHONE NO. COMPANY COMMERCIAL D PERSONAL
(800)876~3278 Specialty Insurance Managers, Inc.
POLICY NUMBER EFFECTIVE DATE EXPIRATION DATE
73APR299770 2/10/2014 2/10/2015
YEAR MAKE/MODEL VEHICLE IDENTIFICATION NUMBER

2008 TFord Crown Vic 2FAFP71V68X159979

AGENCY AGENCY PHONE No, (51214522427

SIG/Chaparral Insurance Group

911 W. Anderson Lane
Austin X 78757

INSURED
Francis Okoro DBA CITY TRANSPORT SERVICES INC

1011 Tanglewood Dr.

Leander . TX 78641 o
This policy provides at least the minimum amounts of liability insurance

required by the Texas Motor Vehicle Safety Responsibility Act for the
specified vehicle and named insureds and may provide coverage for
other persons and other vehicles as provided by the insurance policy.

SPANISH TRANSLATION

TRADUCCION DE ESPANOL
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